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Whitehorse, Y.T.
March 9th, 1977

Mr. Speaker: 1 will now call the House to order.
We will proceed with morning prayers.

(Prayers)

Mr. Speaker: We will proceed with the Order Paper
at this time.

ROUTINE PROCEEDINGS

Mr. Speaker: Are there any documents or corres-
pondence for tabling? The Honourable Member from
Ogilvie?

TABLING OF DOCUMENTS

Ms. Millard: Mr. Speaker, I have a brief to be tabled
this morning to Members of the Yukon Legislative As-
sembly from the Yukon Native Brotherhood, concern-
ing the subject, Green Paper on Policy for Recreation
Development.

Mr. Speaker: Are there any further documents or
correspondence for tabling?

Are there any Reports of Committees? Petitions? In-
troduction of Bills?

Are there any Notices of Motion for the Production of
Papers? Notices of Motion or Resolution?

The Honourable Member from Kluane?

NOTICE OF MOTION

Mrs. Watson: Yes, Mr. Speaker, I would like to give
Notice of Motion, seconded by the Honourable Member
from Whitehorse South Centre, that this House recom-
mends that a Board be constituted forthwith for the
purpose of advising the Commissioner and the Execu-
tive Committee on the selection of a person for ap-
pointment as Director of Game. The Board to consist of
aMember of the Executive Committee, anominee from
the Public Service Commission, a representative of the
Indian community, a representative of the Outfitters’
Association, and a scientist learned in game and wild-
life management, from outside the Territory.

Mr. Speaker: Are there any further Notices of Mo-
tion or Resolution?

Are there any Statements by Ministers?

This then brings us to the Question Period.

QUESTION PERIOD

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Minister of Educa-
tion.

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Speaker, I would like to table
the answer to a question by the Honourable Member
from Hootalinqua concerning school bus services.

Mr. Speaker: Are there any oral questions?
The Honourable Member from Mayo.

Question re: Breakthrough in Land Claims Negotia-
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tions

Mr. McIntyre: Mr. Speaker, I have a question for
the Commissioner this morning. There was an an-
nouncement on CBC this morning regarding an initial
breakthrough in Indian Land Claims negotiations. I
wonder if the Commissioner would care to comment on
the failure of the CBC to mention the participation of the
Yukon Territorial Government in this first agreement
reached?

Mr. Speaker: Mr. Commissioner.

Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Speaker, I'm not aware of
any omission on the CBC of the participation of the
Yukon Territorial Government. During the press con-
ference held following the end of the deliberations of the
planning council yesterday, all three participants at the
table, during the planning council, were in evidence,
sitting side by side during the interview and we all made
statements and comments and the documents do in-
clude reference to all three parties contributing to the
deliberations. The documents, which are being for-
warded under covering letter from me to each of the
Members this morning, will indicate that the Yukon
Territorial Goverrment is indeed a part and parcel of
the Land Claims planning process.

Mr. Speaker: Are there any further questions?
The Honourable Member from Whitehorse South
Centre.

Question re: YTG addressing U.S. Federal Power
Commission

Mr. Hibberd: Yes, Mr. Speaker, I refer to Motion
No. 10, passed by this House on May 27 of last year, that
the Yukon Legislative Assembly convey to the National
Energy Board of Canada and the United States Federal
Power Commission, the desire of this House that full
consideration be given to an Alaska Highway route for
the transmission of natural gas from Alaska to British
Columbia, and that because of the social, economic and
political advantages inherent in the Alaska Highway
route that it be considered as a viable alternative to the
coastal or Mackenzie Valley proposals.

My question for— any of the Ministers may answer
this — if this was to be conveyed to the United States
Federal Commission, is the Yukon Territorial Govern-
ment planning to address itself to the power commis-
sion on this matter?

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Minister of Local
Government?

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Speaker, I have no indica-
tion whether or not that has gone forward, and I would
ask if Mr. Commissioner has any further information,
as he is directly in charge of the pipeline administrator,
Mr. Speaker.

Mr. Speaker: Mr. Commissioner?
Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Speaker, I'm not sure

whether we addressed the Federal Power Commission
asking them to consider it. They, I think, preceded this



request by saying that they would indeed hear the appli-
cation, and so the motion as passed by this House, the
intent was fully recognized.

We do not at this time, unless directed differently by
the House to attend in person the Federal Power Com-
mission hearings in Washington.

Mr. Speaker: Are there any further questions?
We will then proceed to — the Honourable Minister of
Local Government?

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Speaker, 1 have answers
to several questions.

The Honourable Member from Whitehorse South
Centre wanted to know why the contract for the renova-
tions of the sound system was let, when the sound sys-
tem was under warranty with the original installers.

The sound system contractor failed to provide an ac-
ceptable system, and the government hired Baron and
Strachan to report on the condition of the system. This
was done, and the contractor returned to make good the
poor and deficient work.

The cost of Baron and Strachan’s review will be reco-
vered from the sound system contractor.

Mr. Speaker, I would like to table an answer to a
question by Mr. Fleming concerning land in the Car-
cross area. The question on March 2nd was: ‘‘Has the
land in the Town of Carcross been transferred to the
Territorial Government by Ottawa? If so, when, and
why were the residents of Carcross not notified at the
time?”

The answer to the above question is as follows: Land
around the townsite of Carcross was transferred to the
Yukon Territorial Government on July 3rd, 1975 by
block land transferred to the extent of 9.6 square miles.

The matter of the transfer from 1976 federal govern-
ment has been referred to and informally discussedon a
number of occasions at community association meet-
ings by Department of Local Government staff. There
has been no attempt to withhold such information and
the Department has discussed the subject with
everyone who inquired. '

All residents whose uncompleted land files were
transferred were advised of this change by letter from
the Lands Branch. Future land use in the Carcross area
will be the subject of discussion with all interested
community residents and organizations during the
formulation of the proposed regional land use plan for
this area.

Mr. Speaker: We will now proceed to Motions under
Orders of the Day.

ORDERS OF THE DAY
MOTIONS
Item No. 1:

Madam Clerk: Item Number 1, standing in the
name of the Honourable Member Ms. Millard.

Mr. Speaker: Is the Honourable Member preparec
to discuss?

Ms. Millard: Yes, Mr. Speaker.
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Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable
Member from Ogilvie, seconded by the Honourable
Member from Kluane, that the White Paper on decen-
tralization be referred to Committee of the Whole.

Ms. Millard: I will call for question, Mr. Speaker.

Mr. Speaker: Is there any debate?
Are you prepared for the question?

Some Members: Question.
Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed?
Some Members: Agreed.

Mr. Speaker: 1 shall declare that the motion is car-
ried.

(Motion carried)
Item Number 2

Madam Clerk: Item 2, standing in the name of the
Honourable Mrs. Watson.

Mr. Speaker: Is the Honourable Member prepared
to discuss Item 27

Mrs. Watson: Yes, Mr. Speaker. Mr. Speaker, a
point of order, it's actually Item No. 3.

Mr. Speaker: Yes, I am somewhat confused.

We’ve missed one of my --

Yes, perhaps I have erred in that I did not call Motions
through the production of papers, which I will do so
shortly. I thank the Honourable Member for drawing
that to my attention.

It has been moved by the Honourable Member from
Kluane, seconded by the Honourable Member from
Hootalinqua, that Sessional Paper No. 77/1/6 be refer-
red to Committee of the Whole.

Are you prepared for the question?

Some Members: Question.
Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed?
Some Members: Agreed.

_l\:r. Speaker: I shall declare that the motion is car-
ried.

(Motion carried)
Item Number 3

Madam Clerk: Under Motions, Item No. 3, standing
in the name of the Honourable Member Ms. Millard.

Mr. Speaker: Is the Honourable Member prepared
to discuss Item Number 3, this morning?

Ms. Millard: Yes, Mr. Speaker.

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable



Member from Ogilvie, seconded by the Honourable
Member from Whitehorse Riverdale, that a Standing
Committee on Statutory Instruments be established to
review all regulations as they are published;

That Messrs. Fleming, McCall and Berger be ap-
pointed to the said Committee;

That the Committee have the power to report from
time to time, to call for persons, papers and records, to
print such papers and documents as may be ordered by
the Committee, to arrange for verbatim transcripts and
to sit during the inter-sessional periods.

That the Clerk of Assembly be responsible for provid-
ing the necessary support staff to the said Committee.

The Honourable Member from Ogilvie.

Ms. Millard: Mr. Speaker, I think it’s because of the
confusing words to the public, I think a few words in
explanation might be in order about Statutory Instru-
ments.

This Committee will be formed to simply monitor
regulations and assess the implications of those regula-
tions, make recommendations to the Assembly about
the clarity and authority of regulations. I think we must
remember that regulations are produced by our delega-
tion of authority in the Ordinance and this is not recog-
nized by the public.

Most legislatures have this Committee, and it is a
very valuable one. I see it as a further step towards the
development of a responsible legislature. We have
made many steps in the last few months towards de-
veloping a more responsible legislature, particularly in
Standing Committees which are new to us.

Standing Committees are the true working area of the
legislature, and we are already having effective results
from our Standing Committees.

I think this Assembly will be remembered for expand-
ing its responsibility through the working structures of
the Assembly.

Mr. Speaker: Is there any further debate?
Are you prepared for the question?

Some Members: Question.
Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed?
Some Members: Agreed.

Mr. Speaker: 1 shall declare that the Motion is car-
ried.

(Motion carried)
Item Number 4

Madam Clerk: Item Number 4, standing in the
name of the Honourable Member, Ms. Millard.

Mr. Speaker: Isthe Honourable Member prepared
to discuss Item 4?

Ms. Millard: Yes, Mr. Speaker.
Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable

Member from Ogilvie, seconded by the Honourable
Member from Whitehorse South Centre,
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THAT WHEREAS this Government has as its respon-
sibility the care and well-being of our senior citizens,

AND WHEREAS there has been much controversy of
late concerning the Yukon Territorial Government’s
response to that responsibility, particularly in the area
of accommodation of our aged citizens,

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT this As-
sembly requests the administration to look into the fol-
lowing areas of concern and report back to this House by
the end of this Session concerning possible action in
these areas:

(1) Encouragement by the Y.T.G. of involvement by
non-profit organizations in the field of seniors’ housing;

(2) Discussions with the Yukon Housing Corporation
concerning take-over by them of present Welfare
Branch seniors’ housing;

(3) Expansion of seniors’ housing programs to the
smaller communities through the co-operation of the
Welfare Branch, Yukon Housing Corporation, non-
profit organizations, Indian Affairs, native organiza-
tions and all other interested parties;

(4) Programs within and without government hous-
ing which will promote and ensure the independence of
our seniors.

The Honourable Member from Ogilvie?

Ms. Millard: Mr. Speaker, I feel this is a fairly
straightforward resolution. I think everyone’s been
aware in the past few months of the discussion involving
our senior citizens, particularly concerning the Mac-
Donald Lodge in Dawson City, where there were lay-
offs and where there was some controversy about rais-
ing of rents.

I've had many discussions in the past few months with
the officials involved with administration of senior citi-
zens in the Yukon, and it has resulted in the recommen-
dations listed here.

I feel this Motion really is only affirming the direc-
tions that are already slowly being taken. Unfortu-
nately, they’re not being taken quickly enough. I feel
that our senior citizens are in almost emergency situa-
tions at this point, and that we need to make some very
clear decisions on what’s going to happen with them.

Under point one, the involvement of non-profit or-
ganizations is very important. The Pioneers, Lions
Club, people like this, should be encouraged by the Ter-
ritorial Government to get involved in senior citizens’
housing.

C.M.H.C. has agreements where they can help to pay
for housing so that we don’t have to worry about our
budget concerns, which is what’s been the problem be-
fore. I feel that we should have a policy of encouraging
non-profit organizations involving themselves with
senior citizens.

The Yukon Housing Corporation is already housing
some of our senior citizens, because they find it easier
on their budget than living in welfare-supplied housing.

There are just as many people in Dawson City in
Yukon Housing Corporation housing as in welfare hous-
ing in senior citizens, and they are quite happy under
those circumstances. Of course, already the Alexander
Street home has been taken over by the Housing Corpo-
ration. I think this should be encouraged; I think there
should be more discussion between Welfare Branch and
the Housing Corporation, and — concerning the take-
over of other residences in the Territory.



My third point is very important, that the smaller
communities — in the smaller communities, the finan-
cial responsibilities are very complex, and because it
involves various responsibilities and small numbers of
people. I think that it’s time for the Territorial Govern-
ment to make a definite policy of talking with these
other departments which are involved in senior citi-
zens’ housing and other social issues.

My fourth point of independence of the senior citizens
is extremely important. It is unfortunate that most
senior citizens in senior housing in the Yukon have
found that their independence is being eroded, and we
must have a policy towards allowing senior citizens to
retain the independence that they have the right to ex-
pect.

In moving this Motion, my hope is for a Territorial
Government policy plan, involving all agencies, private
and public, in discussing our senior citizens’ problems,
coming to a conclusion and hopefully setting down a
plan for the future.

Wehave a great need in the Yukon Territory for social
planning. We talked a lot yesterday about economic
planning. I think that social planning is equally impor-
tant, and this is one area where we could start. This is
one step towards the end of a real social plan for the
Yukon.

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from
Hootalinqua?

Mr. Fleming: Mr. Speaker, I feel there’s many
areas to be discussed in this Motion Number 4, and 1
would ask that it be moved into Committee of the Whole.

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from
Kluane?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, it’s just a straightfor-
ward motion asking the administration to bring forward
some information and I would sooner debate it in the
House, and I would like to go ahead and speak to it.

Mr. Speaker: Proceed.

Mrs. Watson: I would like the information — I'm
going to support the Motion — I would like the informa-
tion that the Honourable Member has requested, but not
for the same reasons that she’s requesting it.

I found her remarks rather ambiguous. She was ask-
ing for planning, for a social plan for senior citizens in
the Yukon Territory, which is fine, and then on the other
hand she also said that we must preserve the indepen-
dence of the senior citizens.

Now, you're not going to be able to plan for them and
still let them be independent. 1 think this is a very, very
important thing, and I think this is why I am going to
support the Motion to get the report in the House.

Do we want to plan people’s lives? Do we want to give
them the opportunity to live their own lives, provide
some of the assistance which may be required, and I'm
sure that many senior citizens require assistance in one
area or another. But if I thought that we were going to
embark upon a plan to tell senior citizens what to do, I
know they would tell us what to do. Let’s not forget,
they've lived in this country, most of them, for quite a
long time and they’re pretty set in their ways and I think
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they know just where they are going.

I was also — the Honourable Member remarks that
these questions were posed because she’s been talking
to people who are involved in the administrative prog-
rams for senior citizens. I would have hoped her ques-
tions would have been evoked by talking to senior citi-
zens,

I'm not interested in the views of the administrative
people. I'm interested in the views of the senior citizens
that we are supposed to be serving but, nonetheless, I
think the questions that she has asked are very valid and
I think that the Honourable Minister of Health will be
able to bring back a fairly positive report in thisregard,
because the Honourable Member also indicated the var-
ious programs and things that the Y.T.G. was presently
doing.

So!,gl would like to see it sort of concentrated in the one
report, so I will be prepared to support the Motion but
for different reasons.

Mr. Speaker: Is there any further debate?

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Speaker?
The Honourable Member from

Mr. Speaker:
Whitehorse West?

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Speaker, I'd be very happy
to support this Motion because it will be giving this
Department an opportunity to lay on paper all the things
that we are trying to bring about for our senior citizens.

The Honourable Member did not come and discuss
this subject with me. If she has discussed it with my
officials, that’s entirely her business. If she had come to
me I could have told her a great deal more about what is
in the mill for our senior citizens.

We have had a great deal of pressure recently, Mr.
Speaker, from the Golden Age Society, which is a very
strong spokesman for the senior citizens in the
Whitehorse area, and we are doing our best to co-
operate and work with them to achieve their goals. But
there are other senior citizens throughout the Yukon
who are not being spoken for by this group in Whitehorse
and our problem up until now, Mr. Speaker, has been in
identifying how many senior citizens in other parts of
the Yukon also require assistance for things such as
subsidies for their utilities so that they can stay in their
homes, and how much it would cost to implement phar-
macare universally for people over 65.

All these programs are in the mill now, and I am very
hopeful that in the next two weeks or three weeks I will
be able to make an announcement in this House, pend-
ing financial arrangements.

There is one point I must make clear before we bring
in the Paper answering these questions, and that is that
there is no way that I'm aware of, Mr. Speaker, that any
government department can force a service club to
sponsor any kind of housing for senior citizens and, if
proof is needed of the efforts of this department to in-
terest the Lions Club and the Yukon Order of Pioneers
and other groups in sponsoring such housing, we will be
happy to bring that forward.

We would be delighted if such housing would be sup-
ported by service groups. And there have been abortive
efforts to obtain this in Watson Lake, Mr. Speaker, as
well as in Whitehorse, but strangely enough they seem



to fail to come to fruition. That is the business of another
department, unfortunately, that is the Yukon Housing
and CMHC, not ours. But this department has given
every support in that direction and we're very disap-
pointed that none of this has come through.

I’dbe very happy to support this Motion, Mr. Speaker.

Mr. Speaker: Is there any further debate?
Are you prepared for the question?

Some Members: Question.
Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed?

Some Members: Agreed.

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare that the Motion is car-
ried.

(Motion carried)
Item Number 5

Madam Clerk: Item Number 5, standing in the
name of the Honourable Member, Mr. McCall.

Mr. Speaker: Is the Honourable Member prepared
to discuss Item 5 this morning?

Mr. McCall: Yes, Mr. Speaker.

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable
Member from Pelly River, seconded by the Honourable
Member from Whitehorse Riverdale,

THAT WHEREAS a study, entitled ‘A Preliminary
Assessment into the Viability of Home Manufacturing
in Yukon’ has been prepared;

AND WHEREAS, inorder to fully respond and realize
the potential of the viable home manufacturing indus-
try, some further information and promotion is re-
quired;

BE IT RESOLVED THAT it is the opinion of this
House that an in-depth study involving a detailed
analysis of the market, an examination of various fi-
nancial aspects, an assessment of potential par-
ticipators in such a venture, and a study of social and
economic impact of such a facility upon the Yukon
economy be carried out;

AND FURTHER THAT such a study form an integral
part of this social economic planning unit’s report on
Yukon’s economic and social future.

The Honourable Member from Pelly River.

Mr. McCall: Mr. Speaker, I would like to, if I may,
from my seconder ask for the consent of the House to
move it into Committee, if I may.

Mr. Speaker: It would not be competent for the
mover of the Motion to propose procedure of motion...

The Honourable Member from Whitehorse South
Centre?

Mr. Hibberd: I move that Motion Number 5 be
moved into Committee of the Whole.

Ms. Millard: 1 second that.
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Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable
Member from Whitehorse South Centre, seconded by
the Honourable Member from Ogilvie, that Item
Number 5, or I should say Resolution Number 5,
perhaps, be referred to Committee of the Whole.

Are you prepared for the question?

Mr. Hibberd: Motion Number 5, Mr. Speaker.

Mr. Speaker: Well, I believe that this is Resolution
Number 4. This is ltem Number 5, Resolution Number 4.

Mr. Hibberd: It’s Motion Number 5 in my Order
Paper, Mr. Speaker.

Mr. Speaker: Resolution Number 4; are you pre-
pared for the question?

Some Members: Question.
Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed?

Some Members: Agreed.
Mr. Speaker: I shall declare that the Motion is car-
ried.

(Motion carried)
Item Number 6

Madam Clerk: Item Number 6, standing in the
name of the Honourable Member, Mr. Lengerke.

Mr. Speaker: Is the Honourable Member prepared
to discuss Item Number 67

Mr. Lengerke: Yes, Mr. Speaker.

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable
Member from Whitehorse Riverdale, seconded by the
Honourable Member from Whitehorse South Centre,

THAT WHEREAS it is apparent that questions with
respect to the immediate future of the CyprusAnvil op-
eration at Faro are being asked and the need for clarifi-
cation is essential;

BE IT RESOLVED THAT a telegram on behalf of this
Assembly be sent forthwith to the President of the Cyp-
rus Anvil Corporation requesting confirmation of the
continued operation of the Cyprus Anvil Mine at Faro
and to advise the people of Yukon of the specific dura-
tion that the mine operation will continue in Yukon on
the basis of a reasonable mineral or metals market.

The Honourable Member from Whitehorse River-
dale?

Mr. Lengerke: Thank you, Mr. Speaker.

Again, I presented a Motion that I feel is very
straightforward and requires only a yes answer, be-
cause all we're requesting is that a telegram be sent to
the President of Cyprus Anvil confirming information,
I'm sure, that we all know what the answer will be — at
least I hope that’s what the answer would be, a positive
answer.

I suspect that any rumours and any questions that
have been raised in the — over the last few months,



could be of a local nature, at the site itself. However,
these things I don’t know, there could be some other
problems, but again I don’t anticipate that there’s any-
thing too serious to this, but the best way to get at it is to
get an answer in writing, Mr. Speaker, and we should
move with the action that I've suggested in this Resolu-
tion.

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Minister of Educa-
tion?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Yes, Mr. Speaker. Some informa-
tion has just come to my attention from the Commis-
sioner that Mr. John Brock has spoken to the Commis-
sioner this morning, and is prepared to come before this
House as a witness to explain the position of Cyprus
Anvil and the future of the Anvil mining operation in
Yukon.

I would 'suggest at this time, Mr. Speaker, that the
following Motion be amended to read:

That the following amendment be put in Motion
number 6, that all words after “THAT BE IT RESOL-
VED”, that the words be — I just wrote this amendment
up, Mr. Speaker. I don’t know, maybe I should get a
copy of it.

Mr. Speaker: I wonder if it may be of assistance to
the Member to suggest that the Motion be referred to
Committee of the Whole, where witnesses could be cal-
led in any event, to deal with it.

Hon. Mr. Lang: That’s fine, Mr. Speaker, I move it
into Committee then.

Mr. Speakér: Is there a seconder?

Ms. Millard: I second that.

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable
Member from Whitehorse Porter Creek, seconded by
the Honourable Member from Ogilvie, that Resolution
Number 5 be referred to Committee of the Whole.

Are you prepared for the question?

Some Members: Question.

Mr. Spea'ker: Are you agreed?

Some Members: Agreed.

Mr. Spealier: 1 shall declare that the Motion is car-
ried.

(Motion carried)
Item Number 7:

Madam Clerk: Item Number 7, standing in the
name of the Honourable Member, Mr. Fleming.

Mr. Speaker: Is the Honourable Member prepared
to discuss Item Number 77

Mr. Fleming: Yes, Mr. Speaker, however, there is

many questions to be asked because the Minister of
Local Government wasn't here at the last session when

B Dl A T
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this motion was also present, and I would ask that some
Member possibly move it into Committee of the Whole.

Mr. Speaker: I will first have to read the Motion
from the Chair.

It has been moved by the Honourable Member from
Hootalinqua, seconded by the Honourable Member
from Whitehorse Riverdale, that:

WHEREAS the Federal Territorial Lands Advisory
Committee now comprises a total membership of gov-
ernment representatives;

AND WHEREAS it is the desire to have non-
government representation;

BE IT RESOLVED THAT it is the opinion of this
House that the Minister of Indian Affairs and Northern
Development, when appointing Members to the Com-
mittee consider nominations recommended by the
Yukon Legislative Assembly.

The Honourable Member from Kluane?

Mrs. Watson: Mr,. Speaker, I would move that this
Motion be moved into Committee for consideration.

Mr. Hibberd: I second that, Mr. Speaker.

Mr. Speaker: It has been seconded by the Honoura-
ble Member from Whitehorse South Centre — it has
been moved by the Honourable Member from Kluane,
seconded by the Honourable Member from Whitehorse
South Centre, that Resolution Number 6 be referred to
Committee of the Whole.

Are you prepared for the question?

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Speaker, can we speak?

Mr. Speaker: I'msorry, it’s not permitted to debate
this Motion.

Are you prepared for the question?

Some Members: Question.

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed?

Some Members: Agreed.

Mr. Speaker: 1 shall declare that the Motion is car-
ried.

(Motion carried)

Mr. Speaker: May we return at this point, on the
Order Paper, under Orders of the Day, to Motions for
the Production of Papers.

MOTIONS FOR THE PRODUCTION OF PAPERS

Item Number 1

Madam Clerk: Item 1, standing in the name of the
Honourable Member, Mrs. Watson.

Mr. Speaker: Is the Honourable Member prepared
to discuss this Motion today?

Mrs. Watson: Yes, Mr. Speaker.



Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable
Member from Kluane, seconded by the Honourable
Member from Hootalinqua;

THAT the draft of the Area Development Regulations
to control land subdivision, as outlined in Sessional
Paper Number 4, Spring Session, 1976, be tabled in this
House, this Session, before the presentation to the Regu-
lations Review Committee.

Are you prepared for the question?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Speaker, can I speak to the Mo-
tion or is it a procedural motion?

Mr. Speaker: No, I'm afraid that Motions for the
Production of Papers are non-debatable.

Some Members: Question.
Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed?
Some Members: Agreed.

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare that the Motion is car-
ried.

(Motion carried)
Mr. Speaker: We will now proceed to Public Bills.
PUBLIC BILLS

Madam Clerk: Second reading of Bill 12, “Recrea-
tion Development Ordinance.”

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from
Whitehorse Porter Creek?

BILL NUMBER 12: SECOND READING

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Speaker, I move, seconded by
the Honourable Member from Whitehorse North
Centre, that Bill Number 12 be now read a second time.

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable
Member from Whitehorse Porter Creek, seconded by
the Honourable Member from Whitehorse North
Centre, that Bill Number 12 be now read a second time.

The Honourable Member from Whitehorse Porter
Creek?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Speaker, I would like to take
this opportunity to speak briefly to the principle of the
Bill now before Members.

The Recreation Branch of the Department of Educa-
tion presently requires the authority to administer
programs through the Financial Administration Ordi-
nance by regulation.

The proposed legislation will formalize this
government’s commitment in the field of public recrea-
tion, and will complete the legislative base for all the
responsibilities for the Department of Education.

All Members will recall last Session I undertook to
travel throughout the Territory to discuss the policy
paper on recreation, and I'm pleased to report to this
House that the policy was favourably received.
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At the same time, I discovered that each community
had different needs and aspirations, which in turn made
it very difficult to draft the legislation now before the
Members.

In order to accommodate the different communities’
requirements, the Ordinance has been designad to allow
for flexibility in order that each community can take the
best advantage of the programs offered.

Mr. Speaker, this government recognizes the impor-
tance of local government institutions, and therefore
the responsibility of recreation services has been di-
rected towards the local government.

At the same time, we recognize that many com-
munities are at different stages of development, and we
have allowed the local governments the option of ad-
ministering recreation through a Board, or through a
community organization.

Mr. Speaker, it is important that all Members note
that under existing legislation, it is questionable
whether Local Improvement Districts have authority to
expend funds upon recreation services.

To clarify this ambiguity, and to expedite implemen-
tation of this program, the authority is clearly defined in
this Ordinance. As this government also has responsi-
bility to promote territorial-wide sports and cultural
activities, we have provisions for retaining the Advis-
ory Committee to carry on their present duties of al-
locating monies to Yukon sports and cultural governing
bodies, and at the same time, we will retain this body to
advise the government on the programs and policies of
the Recreation Branch.

Draft regulations will be presented to all Members
when considering the Bill, so that all Members have a
clear understanding of the guidelines that will be set
down for the programs offered by this government.

Also Members will be provided with an information
paper which outlines the additional cost that will result
in the passage of this Bill.

Mr. Speaker, I'm sure that once Members have had
the opportunity to study the proposed Ordinance, along
with the regulations, they will agree that we have at-
tempted to accommodate the needs of all communities,
and at the same time promote the orderly development
of recreation.

Mr. Speaker: Is there any further debate on the
principle?
The Honourable Member from Kluane?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Speaker, I’m going to be speaking
against this Bill. I am disagreeing very much with the
philosophy of this Bill, because what it is doing is taking
away the autonomy of the local volunteer community
organization, which has provided recreation facilities
and programs for many, many years in the com-
munities, by forcing them, under the supervision and
control of the Local Improvement District Boards.

This legislation is insisting that any assistance or
funding be channelled through virtually another arm of
the Territorial Government. It’s a historic Bill, because
I don’t know whether all Members sitting around this
House realize the important role that the community
clubs have played in the unorganized area, the areas
outside of the Municipalities in the Yukon Territory,
long before anyone ever thought of Local Improvement
Districts, long before the Territorial Government had



any recreation or sports program at all. Long before
any funding was available for facilities, and operation
and maintenance grants, or any assistance for recrea-
tion at all.

These community clubs stepped in and provided this
on a volunteer basis, and it has continued in this way
over the years, on a volunteer basis.

Now, if this Bill is brought in without amendment, you
are virtually scunding the death knell for community
clubs, and volunteer organizations, and for a very his-
toric institution in the smaller Yukon communities.

Mr. Speaker, I will be opposing the Bill as it is written
now.

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from
Whitehorse South Centre?

Mr. Hibberd: Mr. Speaker, I would like to speak in
favour of this Bill, precisely for the opposite reasons of
the Member from Kluane.

I think that these volunteer organizations in the past
have done a very credible job, but they are running into
difficulties with increasing costs, and I think this Bill is
precisely designed to sponsor these organizations, to
retain their autonomy, but to give them the money to
carry on in the roles that they have been performing in
the past under much hardship, so it will, indeed, give
them more credibility and more ability to function in
that area.

I would also like to bring to the attention of the Minis-
ter, a problem that has been before this House, ever
since we sat in this Session, in that the government has
simply been not prepared with this legislation. We've
had a good deal of trouble in dealing with the matters
before us, because as soon as they arrive on our desk,
they require amendments, there’s white papers coming
down, and I would suggest to the Minister — not that it’s
the situation with this Bill in particular — but I would
suggest to the Minister, that if he is bringing forth possi-
ble regulations and white papers, that he doesn’t give it
to us at the minute that we are supposed to be making a
vote on this.

Please let us have that information long before it is to
be considered.

We can look at it in an intelligent way. 1 would like to
reiterate, Mr. Speaker, that this has been a failure of the
government during this Session and I would not like to
see it carry on in this fashion.

Mr. Speaker: Any further debate?
Are you prepared for the question?

Some Members: Question.
Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed?

Some Members: Agreed.

Mrs. Watsen: Division, Mr. Speaker.

Mr. Speaker: Division hasbeen called. I'll soundthe
bell.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Speaker, a point of order: if any-

body has a conflict, they could have been down the hall a
long time ago.
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Mr. Speaker: For the information of the Members,
I'm bound by the rules of the Committee in this regard...

Mr. Hibberd: You are bound by the rules of the
House, Mr. Speaker, because they are adopted by the
House.

Mr. Speaker: Fortheinformationofthe Members of
House, the bell must be rung for at least two minutes on
division and this came from the Rules Committee and
was adopted by this House.

Madam Clerk, will you poll the House?

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Mr. McKinnon.

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Yea.

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Mrs. Whyard.

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Yea.

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Mr. Lang.

Hon. Mr. Lang: Yea.

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Member Mr. McIn-
tyre.

Mr. Mclntyre: Yea.

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Member Mr.
Berger.

Mr. Berger: Yea.

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Member Mr. Hib-
berd.

Mr. Hibberd: Yea.

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Member Mr. Flem-
ing.

Mr. Fleming: Yea.

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Member Ms. Mil-
lard.

Ms. Millard: Nay.

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Member Mr.
MccCall.

Mr. McCall: Yea.

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Member Mrs. Wat-
son,

Mrs. Watson: Nay.

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Member Mr.
Lengerke.

Mr. Lengerke: Yea.

Madam Clerk: Mr. Speaker, the results of division



are nine yea, two nay.

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare that the Motion has
carried.

(Motion carried)

Mr. Speaker: Shallthe Bill be referred to Committee
of the Whole?

Some Members: Agreed.

Mr. Speaker: We shall now proceed to Private
Members' Public Bills.

PRIVATE MEMBERS’ PUBLIC BILLS
Bill Number 101

Madam Clerk: Private Member’s Public Bill
Number 101, An Ordinance to Amend the Medical Pro-
fession Ordinance.

Mr. Speaker: Would the Honourable Deputy
Speaker kindly take the Chair?

Mr. Deputy Speaker: Is the Member prepared to
continue with this Bill?

Bill Number 101 — Second Reading

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Yes, Mr. Speaker, I would at this
time like to move that, seconded by the Honourable
Member from Klondike, that Private Member’s Public
Bill 101 be now read a second time.

Mr. Deputy Speaker: Ithasbeen moved by the Hon-
ourable Member from Watson Lake, seconded by the
Honourable Member from Klondike, that Private
Member’s Public Bill Number 101 be now read a second
time.

Mr. Deputy Speaker: Mr. Taylor.

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Yes, Mr. Speaker, just briefly
speaking on the principle of this Bill, as I stated yester-
day, the amendments contained in the Bill have the
effect of ensuring that the Board of Inquiry, in receiving
evidence and accepting evidence and information in its
inquiry concerning whatever matter it concerns itself
with, must do so in a judicial manner, similar to pro-
ceedings in civil jurisdiction.

I might say that, contained in the Bill, is a question
which I could, in Committee of the Whole with the
broadest debate, explain it’s in conflict with the basic
fundamental rights contained in the Canadian Bill of
Rights in this regard.

So I would simply, Mr. Speaker, ask the Members of
the House at this time to give second reading to the Bill,
allow second reading to the Bill, so that it may receivein
Committee of the Whole the broadest debate and dis-
cussion.

Mr. Deputy Speaker: The Honourable Member
from Kluane.
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Mrs. Watson: Mr. Speaker, I'm not going to speak
on the philosophy of the Bill because I don’t think it’s got
a philosophy and I don’t think the Honourable Member
outlined the philosophy whatsoever. However, I'm
very, very curious if he would outline the difference in
the two philosophies with the existing section that’s in
the Legislation now and the philosophy which would be
embodied in the amendment that he’s propesing and
what would he hope to accomplish by changing the
Legislation. I think we have a right to have him outline
{h% different philosophies and what he hopes to accomp-

ish.

Mr. Deputy Speaker: The Honourable Member
from Watson Lake.

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Yes, perhaps, in answering a di-
rect question to the Honourable Member, it would not
preclude, I would trust, any other Member to speak, is
this the situation, Mr. Speaker?

Some Members: Clear.

Hon. Mr. Taylor: I find it difficult, without discus-
sing the context of the Bill in detail, which I would have
to do to explain my position in respect of civil rights.
Civil rights are denied, as you will find in your explanat-
ory note where it indicates the current session, or the
current section, 17.1(e), which of course we will find
within the Bill. But that section does allow in hearings
evidence which does not necessarily have to be evidence
which would normally be heard in a court of law or in a
tribunal anywhere else in our judiciary or in our legisla-
tion. It leaves discretion to a board to do what it wants
and the evidence that it receives can be hearsay; it can
be anything.

As] stated earlier, Mr. Speaker, this is contrary to the
Canadian Bill of Rights, which certainly provides that a
person has the right to a fair hearing in accordance with
the principles of fundamental justice for the determina-
tion of his rights and obligations.

The amendment, as I've stated before, Mr. Speaker,
is an attempt to...

Hon.Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Speaker, point of order, Mr.
Speaker.

Mr. Deputy Speaker: Mrs. Whyard?

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Speaker, I find this whole
discussion most improper in this House. This is dealing
with a matter which is still to be decided before the
courts of this land, and I would not venture to make any
comment at this time on this entire subject.

Mr. Deputy Speaker: Mr. Taylor?

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Mr. Speaker, with deference tothe
Honourable Member, she is entirely incorrect. This
matter is not before any courts of the land, or any laws
of the land, at this point in time...

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Speaker.

Hon. Mr. Taylor: ... Mr. Speaker, and it is not sub
judice...



Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Speaker, point of order.

Mr. Deputy Speaker: Mrs. Whyard?

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Speaker, the inference has
just been made that the Civil Bill of Rights has been
infringed by a Board of Inquiry established by this gov-
ernment, and I cannot countenance such statements,
Mr. Speaker.

Mr. Deputy Speaker: This matter is not before a
court in the sense that it cannot be discussed, Mrs.
Whyard. I think it is permissible for the Member to
discuss it.

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Speaker, point of order.

Mr. Speaker, I believe the Member who is now propos-
ing this Private Member’s Bill should consider very
carefully the subject of conflict of interest.

Mr. Deputy Speaker: Mr. Taylor?

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Mr. Speaker, on a point of order.
Perhaps the Member is confused. I have made no such
allegations that any Board has ever done anything in
this regard. I am stating that the Ordinance is inconsis-
tent with the Canadian Bill of Rights, and I would ask for
the concurrence of the House to get it into Committee
where we may be able to properly debate and consider
the Bill.

Mr. Deputy Speaker: Are you ready for the ques-
tion?

Some Members: Question.

Mr. Deputy Speaker: Are you agreed?
Some Members: Agreed.

Mr. Deputy Speaker: I shall declare the Motion as
carried.

(Motion carried)

Mr. Speaker: Shall the Bill be referred to the Com-
mittee of the Whole?

Some Members: Agreed.

Mr. Speaker: This brings us to the end of the Order
Paper.

May I have your further pleasure at this time?
The Honourable Member from Pelly River?

Mr. McCall: Yes, Mr. Speaker, I would move that
Mr. Speaker do now leave the Chair, and the House
resolve into Committee of the Whole.

Mr. Speaker: Is there a seconder?

Mr. Berger: I second that, Mr. Speaker.

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable

Member from Pelly River, seconded by the Honourable
Member from Klondike, that Mr. Speaker do now leave
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the Chair and that the House resolve into Committee of
the Whole.
Are you prepared for the question?

Some Members: Question.

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed?

Some Members: Agreed.

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare that the Motion is car-
ried.

(Motion carried)
(Mr. Speaker leaves Chair)
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

Mr. Chairman: [ now call this Committee to order
and declare a brief recess.

(Recess)

Mr. Chairman: I now call this Committee to order.

Before proceeding with the consideration of the
supps, I have received a request that Mr. John Brock,
President of Cyprus Anvil Corporation, be requested to
appear as witness before Committee. Is Committee in
agreement?

Some Members: Agreed.

Mrs. Watson: Now?

Mr. Chairman: No, not now — so that the Clerk can
make arrangements for his appearance.

Mrs. Watson: Agreed.

Mr. Lengerke: That would be as soon as possible,
Mr. Chairman?

Mr. Chairman: Very well.

Vote 600, Establishment 600, we now have this infor-
mation. Is there any further debate on Establishment
6007

Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Yes, Mr. Chairman. When we last
went through this establishment, we were discussing
primarily, I believe, the $10,000.00 that was being sug-
gested to be used for a study to study electrical franch-
ises in the Yukon.

At that time, when we went through it last time, I said
the necessity of spending the $10,000.00 for a study to be
done by the Territorial Government was not necessary
because we would have to be funding the Board, and I
still maintain that we will have to be funding the Elec-
trical Public Utilities Board in order to analyze the var-
ious franchises that will be put before them.

However, I believe the Chairman of the Board stated
that I was incorrect in my arguments, which is fine; I
will accept his decision. However, I don’t necessarily
agree with him and I'm not going to belabour it.

It brings forward some of the very grave deficiencies



in the legislation that the Board has to operate under,
and I'm sure that they have taken to interpret it one
way, which is absolutely fine. I am interpreting certain
sections in another way, and I think that it brings for-
ward, if you spend any time going through the Electri-
cal Publie Utilities Ordinance, or I imagine if the Board,
whois trying to work under the Ordinance, will see some
very glaring deficiencies in the legislation, and I would
hope that the Territorial Government — not now, be-
cause we have hearings in progress and this type of
thing — would undertake to probably get some special
advice and to undertake a review of the legislation.

Just for example, a franchise means an agreement
wherebyereby the right to supply electricity within a
defined area is granted. Now, to supply electricity, is
this distribution or generation? These are some of the
questions that are being brought up that came to my
mind, and that is one suggestion I have.

I have some questions, more specifically, on the in-
formation paper that was handed out by the Minister of
Local Government. It was a reply to a letter that I had
written to the government asking for a list of the exist-
ing franchises and their expiry date, and in the letter we
were advised that application had been made for
franchises by the Yukon Electric, for the communities
of Beaver'Creek, Destruction Bay/Burwash, Keno City,
0Old Crow, Pelly Crossing, Stewart Crossing, Swift
River, Tagish and Ross River, as well as franchise the
boundary extensions in several areas, including Haines
Junction.

Now, my first question is, the communities that the
Yukon Electric has applied for, for the right to have a
franchise, have they at the present time got a franchise
or isthere an, was there an interim permission given by
the Electrical Board for the Yukon Electric to supply
electricity in the communities? That’s my first question
for the Minister.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon.

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: There are no franchise ag-
reements in those communities where Yukon Electrical
has applied at this point in time and I think there are
interim operating agreements in these areas.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I would suggest and 1
would certainly hope that the government gives this
consideration that since these communities do not have
a franchise that the government advertise and ask for,
give other people or companies the opportunities to bid
on supplying electricity to these communities. Right
now, Yukon Electric has applied. Should we not, as a
government, say that we have had applications from
one company, shouldn’t we give the opportunity to any
company, or even an individual, who feels that they
should be able to bid on that franchise? Is the govern-
ment planning on advertising in this regard? My next
question.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon.
Hon. Mr. McKinnon: This is exactly the reason why

we retain consultants, Mr. Chairman. They are pres-
ently looking at the proposed franchise that Yukon
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Electrical has proposed for those areas where they do
not now have franchises and are going to recommend to
the government whether there should be changes,
whether we should be advertising independently for
other — These are the types of decisions which the ex-
perts which we have hired are supposed to deliver to the
Department of Local Government so that we can then
make a decision as to where we go from here. We
haven’t got that expertise in our department.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson.

Mrs. Watson: Well, Mr. Chairman, with respect, I
don’t think that requires expertise. I think that’s just
good judgment that could be exercised by the Territor-
ial Government to advertise and state that they are
accepting bids for franchise operations in these various
communities and I would feel quite upset if a franchise
was entered into with Yukon Electric and the opportun-
ity was not given to other companies and to individuals
to apply.

Another question that T would like to ask, or possibly
it’s not necessary to ask the question because the Hon-
ourable Member has given some indication that they
have not made any decisions, they’re going to take the
advice of the experts.

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: No, I didn’t say that.

Mrs. Watson: Well, then, 1 can get my two bits’
worth in. Maybe I'm not an expert but I think that we,
here, in this Legislature, have to make some recom-
mendations on this.

The last franchises, the existing franchises, most of
them were for twenty years. Now, twenty yearsis along
time in our modern society and there are many, many
changes being proposed, not being proposed, but five
years can make quite a difference in the Yukon. 1970 —
1975 are two different things. 1970 and 1990 — you
couldn’t foresee what the needs of the Yukon would be
twenty years hence. So I am going to be bringing in a
resolution recommending that we not embark upon
long-term franchises at this time, for that very specific
reason. Five years would be adequate, particularly
when the company who is applying for a franchise is
established so they are not in the position where they’re
going to have to make a lot capital investment to carry
on the operation that they have. I think it’s a very, very
serious thing that we here have to consider and give
some direction to the Government of the Terrifory.

The other area that does concern me a great deal is
the fact, and I would again like to thank the Administra-
tion who gave us a copy, of the franchise agreement
which is in existence at the present time in the commun-
ity of Haines Junction. And we were informed that simi-
lar other franchises almost the same type of agreement,
and the franchise for Yukon Electric in the community
of Haines Junction, most of you know how large it is,
extends 25 miles on either side. Now they are not supply-
ing electricity in that area at all, with a couple of excep-
tions possibly, a few miles out of town.

Now, they already have the franchise for 25 miles, and
we are being informed that there is an application for an
extension of boundaries and I think we would be very,
very wrong if we even considered that. We are not leav-
ing any of our options open, as far as pipeline or many



things that could happen.

We are setting, would be setting a condition for any
future development right there, so that, again, should
be very, very carefully looked at.

Also, the franchise gives that company the sole au-
thority to supply, the soie and exclusive right, privilege,
licence and privilege, to sell and supply, distribute to
residents within an area, having a radius of 25 miles, the
sole and exclusive right.

Now, there should be something in these franchises
that does not give them the complete and sole and exclu-
sive right. If there was a large development, if there
was a large mine, if there is a pipeline, any large de-
velopment, the conditions again would be set; that
mine, smelter, pipeline, what have you, would not have
the ability to determine the type of electrical — or
where they would be getting their power for their opera-
tion.

So, Mr. Chairman, with those remarks, I am not going
to continue to oppose the $10,000.00. I'm not going to hold
up the supplementary budget, and I am going to be
bringing in some recommendations, some resolutions,
outlining some of the things that I have stated, because I
think that this is one of the most important things that
we're getting into in the Yukon this year, and for a few
years following. Quite a few of the franchises are com-
ing due, and I think the government needs a little bit of
political input.

Before I completely let Establishment 600 go through,
I would like to ask why do we not utilize our staff of
economists, and advisors that we have as part of the
new units or department of the Government of the Ter-
ritory? Why do we have to go outside for advisors when
we were just told this is exactly the type of thing, they're
economists, couldn’t they do the analyses of the franch-
ises? My question to the Minister.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon?

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, there’s a lot of
ground to cover, I think I could just make a few re-
marks.

On the longevity of the franchises, and I don’t admit to
be any kind of an expert on electrical franchises, but my
advisors tell me that it’s just the opposite of what the
Honourable Member says is true, that the longer the
franchise, generally the better the rates it is for the
consumers. Because if it is every five years, that the
rates and conditions will be renewed, every five years,
and major companies such as Yukon Electrical Com-
pany, don't like to enter into a rate structure that would
be good down the line, if they know that they’re going to
have to renegotiate on a five year basis. That’s one of
the areas in which our consultants are looking at at the
present time.

The other point that I do want to make is that I've
instructed my officers in the Department of Local Gov-
ernment, that all of the L.I.D.’s and the individual
members are to be kept consulted and informed as to
the stage, any stage of the present franchise negotia-
tion.

I'm led to believé that we have received a preliminary
report on draft franchises from Price, Waterhouse up to
this point, and any of the Members are certainly wel-
come to go to the Department of Local Government.
They will be available, whatever comes in from our
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consultants at the very time that it comes in, and we
hope that this is exactly what we're attempting to do,
that the unorganized areas, that the Local Improve-
ment Districts and that the Members who don’t have
this expertise will be kept informed of what is happen-
ing at any given moment, as far as their particular
franchise goes. .

So I hope Members will avail themselves of this in-
formation, that will be made available as we go along.

The Economic Research and Planning Unit, of
course, was not in place when we started this study. I
believe that we were told that it really has only come
into being several months ago, and I'm not sure whether
there is anybody in that Economic and Research Plan-
ning Unit which didn’t have the expertise at this time
with their latest addition, whether they now have people
in who are qualified to deal, and pretty technical and
pretty — it’s a pretty narrow field of discipline, dealing
with electrical rate structures. One of the Economic
Research planners has this expertise, then of course we
will use it in the future.

But at the present, and when we wanted to examine
the franchise agreements, when we received draft ag-
reements from Yukon Electric that they wanted to
enter into franchises in these areas, it was really the
only route we had to go at that particular moment.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke?

Mr. Lengerke: Yes, Mr. Chairman, just a question
that the Minister of Local Government — maybe he can
confirm this. Is it not true, Mr. Minister, that in the case
of the franchises or the — in the case of the operations at
Beaver Creek, Destruction Bay, Burwash, Keno cities,
the ones referred to in the third or fourth paragraph,
that Yukon Electrical did, and not just recently but
quite some time ago, quite a number of years ago, did
ask to enter into a franchise agreement?

I think they were told by this government, or by the
government of the day then, that this in fact would not, it
wasn’t really necessary. I think that business of the day
at that point in time was done on a rather informal basis
and I think it was just an understanding.

Now, what bothers me is that in fact then, if that is
true, that now it would be the case for a franchise re-

-newal and I think it would have a little difference when

you're considering proposals from Yukon Electrical on
this case.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon?

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, it would be in-
teresting to dig out from the records, some of the de-
bates that went on with some of the various franchises
and I think the Honourable Member from Watson Lake
will probably remember some of them. All of the
franchise agreements used to come to this House for
debate and we threw one out, I believe it was the Teslin,
ithat Bill 13, the Teslin subdivision for some particular
point which memory escapes me at this time, but at that
point in time, the Commissioner just signed the interim
agreement, the franchise agreements with the person
providing the power, so that was the way that we were
handling these, in more informal days. If we didn’t
agree to a bill and threw it out, then the Commissioner
would just go on his way, sign a franchise agreement or



an interim operating authority. So there’s quite a long
and involved — which would fill volumes of the prob-
lems of dealing with franchise agreements in the Yukon
up to this point in time.

We hope that we’ll be able to rationalize it through
franchise agreement, through having expertise, mak-
ing sure Yukon consumers get the best deal, particu-
larly in the smaller communities and hopefully, keeping
the Members and the local L.1.D.’s and the unorganized
areas available and aware of what’s happening at every
particular stage and attempt to rationalize this franch-
ise arrangement throughout the Yukon.

As the Honourable Member from Kluane says, it's no
small task, it's alarge order problem and one that we're
attempting at least to bring some sense to and I hope
we're successful.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming?

Mr. Fleming: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I'm very con-
cerned about a twenty year franchise at any time, be-
cause as the Minister said, of course, it does give the
companies a chance to possibly give us cheaper rates.

However, I'm not even concerned at this time with
franchises. I would like to ask the Minister if the Board
or whatever'is going to study all the franchises, has
there been any thought to them studying the possibility
of operating our own power in Yukon Territory instead
of studying the franchises?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon?

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, if I went and
tried to dictate to the Board what they do, the Honoura-
ble Member would jump down my back with a ven-
gance like I couldn’t believe. I have no authority and
will not, and cannot instruct the Yukon Electrical Pub-
lic Utilities Board. I think so much of the membership-
ship on that, that if I did they'd complain to — probably
the Speaker of this Legislature that I was trying to exert
undue political influence on them.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming?

Mr. Fleming: Mr. Chairman, I think the Minister
misunderstood me, I said ‘‘the Board”. However, we
are spending a bunch of money now to have some plan-
ning, something, I don’t know what you're getting, to
study the franchises in the Yukon Territory and if we
should have a franchise.

What I'm asking is the government which consists of
the Executive Members, the Commissioner and that
group, and possibly myself, but I'm attempting now to
do so, study the fact as to whether we can run our own
power or not cheaper than what it’s being run now.
Other than spending money on studying franchises.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon?

Hon.Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, could I suggest
to the Member that a better answer to that question
could be obtained from the Chairman of the Northern
Canada Power Commission when he comes before the
House in Committee of the Whole. I think that he’s going
to give you a heck of a— I happen to think you can. But I
can’t back that up with facts, figures and statistics,
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which I'm sure the Chairman of the NCPC will be able to
do.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, as I've said before, to
me this is one of the most serious things that we have to
consider. This year or in the next few years, and we are
actually, we are talking about planning for our future.
Well, this is it. This is the nuts and bolis of it, of our
future.

I'd like to go on record that I want to be kept informed
on whether it's my own community or whether it’s
communities in my constituency, or whether it's Mr.
Fleming’s community in Teslin, T would like to see the
reports of the experts. While I respect expert’s ability, I
don’t think alittle bit of political sugar helps some of the
experts’ reports.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon?

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: If we could depend on the
House to supply that political sugar, Mr. Chairman, it
would be much appreciated.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger?

Mr.Berger: Yes, Mr. Chairman. I would like to ask
the Honourable Member from Kluane, she made some
interesting comments which I think escaped the Minis-
ter of Local Government, I expected him to reply onit.

I have to agree to let other companies bid on a franch-
ise, but she on the one hand says, a 20 year franchise is
too long, 5 years islong enuugh, fine. On one hand she
says new companies should be able to bid on it, but on
the other hand, she also says that the established com-
pany does not have a large investment already, because
they invested money in the Yukon.

So how does she explain on one hand she wants new
companies bidding on the franchise; on the other' hand
she keeps them out because she doesn’t want to give
them a 20 year franchise?

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I realize this, I realize
this full well, that if a new company was bidding on a
franchise, the fact that it was a short term franchise
would certainly be to his disadvantage, this is very true.

But we are not in there to give a disadvantage or an
advantage to a company. We're trying to get the best
deal, but we still, I think, as a government, when you're
going to give someone the sole and exclusive right, we
still as a government have to advertise and let anybody
who wants to, bid on it.

Whether the new guy’s at a disadvantage because he
doesn't have it there, and it’s a short term one, but some
of them, but some people in some of these areas may
have the ability, without too much capital investment,
to provide the electricity, other than the company that’s
operating now, and we can’t excluse that either.

So I know that it sounds like, it contradicts itself, but
it’s still a requirement to go to bid.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger?



Mr. Berger: Mr. Chairman, I think this is what the
whole exercise of this particular study is supposed to be,
to look at franchises, and I think we talk about for so
long over the same thing with the Department is trying
to do in the first place.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I agree the Depart-
ment is trying to get an expert’s advice, and I say we
have experts here we should have used that are on our
payroll at the present time, but if we didn’t watch this,
and didn’t monitor it, and didn’t get our political input
in, we would be abrogating some of our responsibility
too. I don’t want to sit here and go along with the ex-
perts. We’ve done it before, right down the path and
sometimes they haven’t led to where we want to go.

Mr. Chairman: Is there any further debate on Es-
tablishment 6007
Clear?

Some Members: Clear.
Mr. Chairman: Establishment 605. Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I'm concerned about
the one time grants of $104,000.00, to the municipalities,
and the paper that we got states during budget delibera-
tion one year ago, the former Commissioner assured
this Assembly that every attempt would be made to
provide for a one time only per capita windfall grant to
municipalities, based on the adjusted preliminary
population statistics obtained in 1976.

Well, I sort of researched that and I couldn’t find any
reference to that, but that really doesn’t matter. But we
all know that under a program of assistance to
municipalities, the Yukon Government provides grants
based on population, population set by Statistics
Canada. We all know that the community of Faro, and of
Whitehorse have said that it isn't completely fair, be-
cause their populations change between the statistics
and they are not getting the benefit of it.

Now, the statistics were taken in 1976, and there were
preliminary figures out in 1976. However, under the
Municipal Aid Legislation, you are not able to use the
new statistics until June of the following year. The new
statistics shouldn’t really be used until June of 1977, on
which to base your per capita grant.

My first question for the Minister is, how did you
arrive at your $104,000.00?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon?

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, that would be
the difference, that the grants would have been given to
municipalities using the 1971 figures, and the 1976 fig-
ures.

I would also like to state, Mr. Chairman, that the
former Commissioner, in his opening address, Speech
from the Throne last year, stated that no provisions
have been made in this budget for increased per capita
grants to municipalities. However, following the receipt
of the 1976 census, the population figures in early 1977,
there will be a reassessment of the financial positions of
the Municipalities in the light of the high rate of infla-
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tion.

At that time, consideration will be given to the provi-
sion of one time special grants to help ease the burden of
shrinking dollars on municipal governments, and I
might say that the municipal governments kept remind-
ing me and reminding me of that statement of the
former Commissioner in his opening address, Speech
from the Throne at the last budget session, and I felt
obligated to make sure if the money was available, that
that promise of the former Commissioner be initiated.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, so you have actually
used the new statistics for your 1976 calculations then?

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Yes, Mr. Chairman, that is the
reason why there is a line item in a supplementary
budget, rather than under the Municipal Aid Ordinance,
because we realize the problem with using them under
the Municipal Aid Ordinance, in June of last year.

It’s going to be a problem next year, because I im-
agine what we’ll be doing is to be giving a grant on the
old ones, and bringing it up to the other ones when we're
able to use it according to the legislation, but in one way
or another, the municipalities are going to get their 1970
— and we have budgeted their 1977 per capita grants on
the 1976 D.B.S. statistics.

Mr. Chairman: . Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, this is what I thought.
Are you going to follow the same procedure in 1977,
because it says in June of ’77, so you will have to again
come back, and you said this would be a one time grant,
so if you are going to do what you're doing, you're going
to have to make a second one time grant in 1977, am I
correct?

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: No, Mr. Chairman, I don’t
think so. This is a one time windfall grant, which really
does not have a relationship to the terms of the Munici-
pal Aid Ordinance. It's a line item vote in the budget,
which is perfectly competent under the Financial Ad-
ministration Ordinance, which I'm led to believe.

The reason why we wanted to do it in supplementary
is because it was a commitment of the former Commis-
sioner for those years when the populations in
municipalities were rising, and no considerations were
being given to that rise, because we had to go by the 1971
statistics.

Now, I think the actual — that’s the reason it was
explained to me, why we were doing it in supplemen-
taries, and I believe that any questions on the financial
procedures other than that, I would appreciate if they
were addressed to the Treasury Department, because I
don’t have any further answers.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, that's specifically the
point that I'm getting to. We have a Municipal Aid Ordi-
nance, which specifically defines the terms under which
Municipal grants are given to municipalities, very,
very specifically.

Now, we are saying we want to deviate from our own



legislation, which is the law as far as grants to
municipalities is concerned, for this government, we
want todeviate and give additional money, and just vote
it as a line item, and I maintain, and I'm not arguing
with the money being given. What [ am saying is, there
is no way that we should authorize the government to go
ahead and spend, give a grant which is contrary to our
law, because our law very specifically says you use the
new statistics figures in June of 1977, whether you like it
or not, it’s in there.

Now, if you want to use the statistics figures of 1976,
amend your legislation. If you want to do it for one year
only, please amend your legislation, give yourself the
power todoit, but don't ask us to vote money against our
own laws, and I think if you would check the Financial
Administration Ordinance, the Commissioner cannot
grant it either. It has to be for a specific service.

So it would be one of the, it would be just a horrible
thing for us to vote money, contrary to our own laws,
and I would submit, Mr. Chairman, that the Honourable
Member has two choices. I think that he can amend the
Municipal Ordinance, or he can bring in enabling legis-
lation for a one time grant, but get the authority, not-
withstanding the Municipal Aid Legislation, we can do
this, bring that forward, but don’'t ask me to spend
money that I am not entitled to spend, by law.

I don’t think anyone in this House should be prepared
to spend that money against the law that is on our books.
I think that everyone should consider it, if the enabling
legislation was brought in, be it an amendment or a one
time Bill.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon?

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Well, Mr. Chairman, the only
thing that I can say as I asked the former Commis-
sioner, the former Treasurer, the present Treasurer
and the present Legal Advisor whether what we were
doing was completely legal and above board and was
assured by all of them, yes, that’s good enough for me,
As far as I'm concerned, 1 don't think the municipalities
will be bringing us to court over this.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Well, Mr. Chairman, don't ever ask
me to pass a bill here, don’t ask me to pass any bill
outlining a policy or a formula because the government
feels that they can break law. What's the point. What’s
the point about sitting here? What was the point about
sitting here and doing the Liquor Ordinance? I ask you.
It was passed by a majority in this House and has it been
brought into effect? No. All we do is sit and make re-
commendations. And what happens? Nothing.

Now, we're being asked to break our ownlaws and I'm
saying don’t ask me to do that. And I don’t think any of
us should do it. Bring in your legislation, do it properly.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon?

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, I would be
most happy if the Members request to delay the im-
plementation of the one time grants until the experts
that I have heard from have satisfied me and satisfied,
or otherwise, the Members of this House. That’s a
legitimate request for information that is available and
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if Members ask for that information, witnesses can be
brought forward before this House to bring that infor-
mation to Honourable Members.

Mr. Chairman: Is it the wish of Committee to go on
with that consideration or shall we vote on it now?
Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, you can get all the
experts’ advice that you like, whether it’s legal to do it
by a vote wording. I don’t care whether the expert says
you can do it by vote wording, but you still have a law.
And this, the general public so often says that, the gov-
ernment has laws, but they don’t have to live by them.
And we would be doing exactly the same thing. The
government has laws but they don’t have to live by
them.

How many times do the Honourable Members sitting
around here hear that? Quite often, quite often. They
don’t follow the building code, they don't follow the fire
protection, they don’t do this. You often hear the gov-
ernment accused of this whether there’s any legitimacy
to it or not. But the public so often says that.

We just had a fine example the other day in Northern
Health, isn’t under the Labour Code. Right? Okay. Do
we have a law in our books for municipal aid? Do you
want to deviate for it one time? Let us pass the enabling
legislation. Don't ask us to do it by vote wording.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson, it is the wish of Com-
mittee that we do brin% a witness forward and at that
time I'm sure you will be able to question him.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, [ don’t care how many
witnesses you bring forward.

Mr. Chairman: That is the wish of Committee, Mrs.
Watson.
Can we have these witnesses at 1:30, Mr. McKinnon?

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: [ will try to see whether I can
arrange their busy schedule so that they can be availa-
ble for Committee, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman: Committee will recess until 1:30.
(Recess)

Mr. Chairman: I now call this Committee to order.

At recess, Committee was asking for a legal interpre-
tation regarding Establishment 605, one time grant to
municipalities. Mr. Sherlock?

Mr. Sherlock: Mr. Chairman, firstof all, allow me to
compliment Mrs. Watson on her adherence to principle,
most commendable, however, 1 wish to assure the
Member that she will not have to compromise her prin-
ciples in any way by voting for this particular appropri-
ation.

What we have here are two separate pieces of legisla-
tion, and one does not contradict the other, if taken
separately. On one hand, certain grants can be made to
the Municipalities, under the Municipal Aid Ordinance,
and in this case, a one time grant, a special grant, under
the Ordinance that is now being debated, that is the
Second Appropriation Ordinance, 1976-77.



Soin my view, there is no conflict between the two,
and from a financially legal point of view, the lwo are
quite legal and correct.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Legal Advisor?

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, | agree with that
opinion, but the principle is that no money may be spent
by the council, or by the’government, unless it’s ap-
proved by the Commissioner-in-Council, which means
by an ordinance. The Appropriation Ordinance is an
ordinance, the other one is also an ordinance, so an
amendment could be made to the Municipal Aid Ordi-
nance, or a separate ordinance could be introduced or it
could be done by way of appropriation.

For years and years, a number of expenditures have
been made by this government, and the only legal sanc-
tion has been, so far as an erdinance is concerned, is by
an appropriation, and sometimes (his is continued inde-
finitely for years.

For instance, we expended money under the Legal
Aid Appropriation in the Appropriations Ordinance for
many years, but eventually then when the detailed
scheme was put together, it hecame the subject of a
separate ordinance. This is something which has been
hallowed by custom and it's perfectly legal, and has
been since this council first commenced its operations,

Mr. Chairman: We would also liketo ask the witnes-
ses if this type of procedure is carried out in other juris-
dictions.

Mr. Legal Advisor: Yes, Mr. Chairman, it's been
done for a hundred years by the Governmenl of Canada
in the same way.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, is that all the witnes-
ses?

Mr. Chairman: Yes.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I respect the opinion
of the legal advice that we’ve had and this is correct, |
knew this would be the legal advice and the financial
advice. I'm quite aware of that, that you can vote some-
thing by a line of appropriation. But that isn’t the point
that I was making.

The point that [ was making is, under the Municipal
Aid Legislation, we define how we calculate aid to
municipalities and we calculate them on the basis of
statistics and a per capita grant by the population based
on the Statistics Canada and a per capita grant.

Now this grant that is being proposed now is also
based on statistics and is also based on per capita and
that is precisely the point I am making. You are lifting
this out of that and it’s still a per capita grant, whether
you call it unconditional. The Honourable Member said
today, I asked him how he calculated it and they caleu-
late under the terms of the Municipal Aid legislation.

I am saying, if you are giving that kind of a grant,
based on number of people, increase in population,
based on so much per person, then for goodness sakes,
amend your Municipal Aid legislation or, as the Legal
Advisor said, and as I said this morning, bring in a
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separate hill.

1 am quite aware that you could make, you could sit
down and say I'm going to make a grant to so and so,
which we are proposing in the — in assisting the Dawson
sewer and water system. But that is a specific grant for
the sewer and waler system. Itisn’t a per capita grant. 1
think, that if Honourable Members consider, and I'm
sure that the Legal Advisor will agree with me, that
becausethe grant is based on the formula in that legisla-
tion, we'd better amend legislation.

Everyone is sitting and saying she’s trying to slow
down the supplementaries. I am not trying to slow down
the supplementals, at all. I want it to be done properly.
And we have a law and we should obey our own law.

| am quite prepared to stand this supplemental aside
until,in Committee, until the legislation is drafted, and I
don’t think it would be an extensive piece of drafting,
and bring it forward, and we can pass the legislation
which will give the government the authority to give
extra money to the municipalities, on the basis of a per
capita grant.

Thank you.

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, that's a political
question, really, 1i’s not really a legal question.

Mrs. Watson: You bet it is.

Mr. Legal Adviser: As I said, the government has a
choice of using one of three legally sound methods. The
government has chosen to use a particular method for
its own reasons, 50 it’s not really a legal question, it's a
political question, and it's not quite correct to say one
methed is more proper than the other. Each is approp-
riate for its purpose.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Mcintyre?

Mr, Mcintyre: Yes, Mr. Chairman, may we clear
this item?

Mr. Chairman: Yes.
Kstablishment 605, elear?

Some Members: Clear.
Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I think the Honourable
Mermbers are making a very, very, very bad decision.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson, this has been debated,
and -

Mrs. Watson: And I think — no, Mr. Chairman --
Mr. Chairman: -- it’s now been voted on —
Mrs. Watson: -- [ think 1 have the right to debate it.

Mr. Chairman: It has now been voted on, so we'll
now consider Vote 6.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman,do yourealize we have



given the authority to people just --

Mr. Chairman: You're out of order, Mrs. Watson,
you're out of order, Mrs. Watson.

Mrs. Watson: Well, I think I'm completely out of
order, because I happen to think a little differently.

Mr. Chairman: Department of Local Government,
Department of Local Government, decrease $35,736.00.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman?
Some Members: Clear.
Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: I have other questions on that 605,
which 1 should have the right to ask.

Mr. Chairman: 605has now been cleared, Mrs. Wat-
son.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I was denied the right
for information by this House.

Mr. Chairman: We are now considering Vote 6, De-
partment of Local Government.

Some Members: Clear.

Mr. Chairman: Schedule A, Second Review, Ad-
ministrative Services, $212,524.00.

Some Members: Clear.

Mr. Chairman: Clear?
Department of Treasury. $584,212.00. Clear?

Some Members: Clear.

Mr. Chairman: Department of Education.
$162,939.00. Clear?

Some Members: Clear.

Mr. Chairman: Department of Territorial Secretary
and the Registrar General. Decrease $67,278.00.
Clear?

Some Members: Clear.

Mr. Chairman: Department of Health, Welfare and
Rehabilitation.  $797,551.00 Clear?

Some Members: Clear.

Mr. Chairman: Department of Local Government.
Decrease $35,736.00.

Some Members: Clear.

Mr. Chairman: Department of Tourism, Conserva-
tion and Information. $65,868.00. Clear?

Some Members: Clear.
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Mr. Chairman: Department of Legal Affairs.
$3.423.00. Clear?

Some Members: Clear.

Mr. Chairman: Department of Highways and Pub-
lic Works. Decrease $299,900.00. Clear?

Some Members: Clear.

Mr. Chairman: Yukon Housing Corporation.
$162,269.00. Clear.

Some Members: Clear.
Mr. Chairman: Project Capital. $2,176,100.00. Clear?
Some Members: Clear.

Mr. Chairman: Loan, Amortization. $45,000.00.
Clear?

Some Members: Clear.

Mr. Chairman: Schedule A. $3,806,972.00. Clear?
Some Members: Clear.

Mr. Chairman: Shall Schedule A carry?

Some Members: Agreed.

Mrs. Watson: Disagreed. | want my vote recorded.

Mr. Chairman: There are no recorded votes in Com-
mittee, Mrs. Watson, but you already succeeded in
doing so.

WHEREAS it appears by message from Aurthur
Pearson, Esquire, Commissioner of the Yukon Territ-
ory, and in the estimates accompanying the same that
the sums hereinafter mentioned in Schedule A of this
Ordinance are required to defray certain expenses of
the public service of the Yukon Territory and for the
purpose relating thereto, for the twelve months ending
the 31st day of March, 1977.

THEREFORE, the Commissioner of the Yukon Ter-
ritory, by and with the advice and consent of the Council
of the said Territory, enacts as follows:

Second Appropriation Ordinance 1976-77.

Mr. Chairman: We’'ll have to first carry the clauses
that were not carried before because of Committe’s
desire to cover them at this stage.

One (1):

(Reads Clause 1 (1))

Mr. Chairman: Clear?

Some Members: Clear.

Mr. Chairman: Two (1):
(Reads Clause 2 (1))

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Yes, Mr. Chairman, thank you. I don’t



know why I'm thanking you, it’s a right I have.

Ithink you areallaware I'mgoing toopposeit, andI
wouldn’t have opposed it if 1 hadn’t been denied, if you
people hadn’t agreed to go along and make a political
decision to spend $104,000.00, which isn’t completely the
worst of it.

There’s another $80,000.00 in the budget for the sewer
and water system in Dawson City. There was $15,000.00
voted. Not one person has stood up and asked why, not
one person has stood up and asked if there was a for-
mula; not one person has stood up and asked whether
we are going to continue to fund the deficit of the opera-
tion of the Dawson sewer and water system, or whether
we are going to put it on a formula basis. Not one person
has, we just automatically agree to spend an additional
$80,000.00.

I'm just absolutely appalled. I will be asking further
questions on that type of expenditure when we get into
the Main Estimates. I realize now that I won’t be getting
any answers, and I'll be cut off if T try to get information
on it.

Mr. Chairman: Clause 2, are we clear?
Some Members: Clear,

Mrs. Watson: Disagree. Mr. Chairman, 1 would like to
record my disagreement on Clause 2.

Mr. Chairman: Clause 3 (1):
(Reads Clause 3 (1))
Mr. Chairman: Four (1):
(Reads Clause 4 (1):
Mr. Chairman: Shall the Bill carry?
Some Members: Agreed.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, disagreed, I'd like it
recorded.

Mr. Chairman: Do I have leave to report the Bill
without amendment?

Some Members: Agreed.

Mr. Chairman: The Committee will carry on to Bill
Number 2. First Appropriation Ordinance, 1977-78.
Clause One.

(Reads Clause 1)
Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon?

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, I'm not sure
whether this is the point or not, and I'll be guided by the
Chairman. As all Honourable Members will know that
there has been a distinct change in the format of the
estimates for this year, this took quite some debate at
sub-committee on finance meetings and Treasury con-
vinced the members on the sub-committee of finance
that this was a much more palatable way of presenting
the estimates, and also gave much more information
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than did the last estimates.

I'm not sure that I"m all convinced by the arguments
that the people from Treasury made at that time, and 1
was wondering whether the members would like an exp-
lantion from Treasury as to the format, and what they
feel is additonal information in the estimates in the form
in which it has been presented to Committee.

Mr. Chairman: I think that would be very appropriate
if we could have such an explanation. We’ve all had
difficulties with the transition.

Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, the main change which
has been made has been the breaking out of the estab-
lishments into their component activities.

I recall last year towards the end of the budget ses-
sion, one or perhaps two or three of the Members spoke
to the budget, and in doing so, mentioned that after
having voted substantial amounts of money, in some
cases they were still at a loss as to exactly what was
going to happen with the money being spént. They might
know how much was being spent on office supplies, how
much was being spent on pool cars, et cetera, et cetera,
but there was an indication they didn’t know what was
going to be accomplished.

So what we endeavoured to do is to break the estab-
lishments into their components, wherever that was
possible, to provide a bit more information as to what
activities are being carried on within the establish-
ments. So that was the main theme behind the changes
which were, in fact, made.

Mr. Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Williams.
Mrs. Watson.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, for the records, I'm not
arguing about the formats, the information, but I do
take great exception with the print. I understand they
didn't have a great deal of time, they were trying tofit a
great deal of information into one page, but the print s, I
think it's extremely small. Maybe a person shouldn’t be
my age and be in this Assembly to try to read it, but I
have problems trying to read it without using a ruler
and carrying the figures across. And I would certainly
suggest that for next year, put itonlarger paper and use
larger print.

Mr. Chairman: Vote one. Administrative Services.
$2,374,100.00.
Mr. Taylor.

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Yes, Mr. Chairman, just as a matter
ot interest for the members of Committee, under Es-
tablishment 100, to date, we've spent, in relation to the
Commonwealth Parliamentary Association, from the
$8,000.00 allotted us, only $2,671.91. And in respect of the
Legislative Committees, I can report that the Rules,
Elections and Privileges Committee, $319.30, and the
Committee expenses on Yukon Land Claims Commit-
tee, $1,985.32.

Mr. Chairman: Establishment 100. Yukon Legisla-
tive Assembly. $331,700.00 I refer you to pages 12 and 13.
Mrs. Watson.

()



Mrs. Watson: Salaries and Wages. For members of
the Assembly and the elected members of the Executive
Committee. How many members of the Executive
Committee are we budgeting for in this Vote?

Mr. Chairman: Will one of the Ministers attempt to
reply?

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Twelve members, three elected
members of the Executive Committee, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson.

Mrs. Watson: There's a considerable increase, is that
quite normal over '76-'77. Is this normal increases?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams.

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, these are the payments
which have been approved by the Anti-Inflation Board.

Mrs. Watsen: It’s just normal increases.
Mr. Williams: It's normal, right.

Mr. Chairman: Is there any further debate on Estab-
lishment 1007
Mrs. Whyard.

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, no debate, but 1
think it might be an appropriate time for Mr. Speaker to
inform the House of the activities of the Commonwealth
Parliamentary Association.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor.

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Mr. Chairman, as all members
know, being members of the Commonwealth Par-
liamentary Association, our activities during the sea-
son were somewhat limited. The Speakers’ meeting, it
was unfortunate, due to the conflict of the sitting of the
House, it was not possible for me to attend that this year
on behalf of the House, but we did have an opportunity to
attend the Area Conference in company with Mr. De-
puty Speaker, in Charlottetown, this last fall. The con-
ference was very rewarding, as the report to the mem-
bers indicated and we, unfortunately, were unable to
host any visiting delegations during the year.

I can report that the House of Commons, through the
Commonwealth Parliamentary Association, are still
working very diligently on the presentation of a Clerks
Table to this House, and it is hoped that by fall that the
Honourable James Jerome, the Speaker of the House of
Commons will be here to present us with that table.

Also, in future activities, I believe the big, the major
Commonwealth Conference will be hosted by Canada
this year. Meetings are now underway in Ottawa to
prepare for this. The Yukon will not be playing too pre-
dominant a role.

There is a week of tours lined up across Canada, and it
is just virtually impossible to, in view of the enormity of
this conference, to get people into the Yukon, Mr.
Chairman, and so we will be playing a rather low key
role this year In general Canadian area Commonwealth
Parliamentary activities, and this is about all T have to
report at this time, unless there are any questions. |
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would be glad to help answer them.
Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard?

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, am I to under-
stand that we are not going to have any of the post-
congress tours of the Parliamentary Association in the
Yukon?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor?

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Yes, Mr. Chairman, this is correct.
Each tour, they're booked pretty well across the coun-
try, across the provincial regions of Canada, and
they're broken into four, actually four tours, they're
kind of counter-rotating. Each tour doesn’t see all of
Canda.

Some will go to the Maritimes, some will come to
western Canada, some to Ontario, Quebec, and some
into the Prairie regions. As I say, just because of the
enormity of the project, it is not possible to -- for the
Yukon to accommodate this situation.

Also, there are some very, very heavy financial re-
sponsibilities for those host provinces for the week that
they host these tours within their province, and it would
be obviously not wise for us at this time to even attempt
to find the many thousands of dollars it would require to
work into this schedule, were it possible that we could
work into it.

The whole situation was such that it was not possible
to do this.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger?

Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Chairman. I would like to com-
ment again on what the Honourable Member from
Kluane remarking before, and I think it sort of leaves a
bad taste in my mouth, and I think it should be for the
record, I would like to get it on record, what is the salary
on an appointed Ex-Com member, and what is the sal-
ary of an elected Ex-Com member? 4

I also would like to get on record how much the Mem-
bers of the Legislative Assembly make right now.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, I do have a schedule
which supports that item of $251,000.00. I could have it
duplicated and distributed if the Members wish.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon?

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr, Chairman, I think what the
Honourable Member wants is what is the salary range
of the Public Service Commission schedule, for a person
in, an appointed person in an Executive Committee job,
in the Territorial salary range, what would be the posi-
tion if there were another appointed Member on the
Executive Committee with the former Member’s qual-
ifications, what salary range would that be?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, it's a question, what
does an elected Member of the Ex-Com get as opposed
to what an appointed Member gets?

4



Mr. Berger: Mr. Chairman, that is correct. I would
like to see the companison on record, what does an
elected Member get right now, and what an appointed
Member gets right now, on Ex-Com.

Mr., Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman at the present time, the
only two appointed Members of the -- there are two
appointed Members of the Executive Committee, and
neither one of them -- and in neither case, does their
salary appear in our budget.

Mr. Chairman: Yes.
Hen. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman: Yes.

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, what was the
salary range that the former appointed Member of the
Executive Committee, that was paid out of the Territor-
ial budget, what was the salaries?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, I don’t know the full
range, but the maximum of that range was $45,000.00.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger?

Mr. Berger: If the witness could please tell us what is
an elected Member making?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams? Mr. McKinnon?

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, the elected
Member of the Executive Committee cannot come in,
according to the Executive Committee documents, at a
salary higher than the lowest range, than the Executive
Committee appointed, so it would be somewhere at the
lowest range in that area, of about 36, I would imagine,
would be pretty close.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger?

Mr. Berger: Now, if we could also have for the record,
what is the Members making in this House right now?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, as I said, I can distri-
bute the list. There’s a basic indemnity of $8,800.00, but
there are, I believe, $12,800.00, but there are a number of
adjustments.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor?

Hon. Mr. Tayler: Yes,I think the question also that
the Honcurable Member from Klondike has been trying
to get is what — we know now that an appointed Member
would make somewhere in the $36,000.00 range annually
— what does an elected Member of the Ex-Com make, in
comparison to that?

Mr. Chairman: We just had that answer, I think.
Hon. Mr. Taylor: No, I don’t think so.
Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming.
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Mr. Fleming: They did have an answer of what was
the range that an appointed member could be started at.
1 also wish to say the same questions as the Honourable
Member from Pelly. I'd like to know what we are get-
ting, what I am getting, today. What are they getting
today? And what will be the — an appointed member?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Sherlock.

Mr. Sherlock: 1 think, in view of the confusion, it
would be best for us to table the answer, bring it in
tomorrow.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor?

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Mr. Chairman, could it be that the
Administration are becoming embarrassed over their
failure to be, to give us that one figure? We now know
what the bottom salary of an appointed member is inthe
Public Service salary range; could we know what an
elected member of the Executive Committee makes
today? By comparison. That'’s all I want.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Sherlock.

Mr. Sherlock: Mr. Chairman, I believe we do have
the answer available. We canread itin if that’s satisfac-
tory.

Mr. Chairman: Please do.

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, the projected expen-
diture for the salary of an elected member of the Execu-
tive Committee for the fiscal year 1977-78 is $36,534.00.
The comparable figure, the comparable maximum for
a territorial appointed member of that Committee was
approximately $44,900.00.

Mr. Chairman: For the coming fiscal year.

Mr. Williams: For the fiscal year, 1977-78.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, for clarification of my
question, apparently there must have been some mis-
understanding. Establishment 100 provides for salaries
for councillors and elected members of the Executive
Committee and I looked at the amount of $256,000.00 and
asked whether, within that amount, was the salary for a
fourth elected member on the Executive Committee.
And the reply I got was ‘no’. That was my question.

Mr, Chairman: Establishment 100.

Mrs. Watson: Under Establishment 100.

Mr. Chairman: I don't think that comes under that
Establishment. )

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman,
Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard.
Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, if I may point



out, the Honourable Member will find that itemn under
120, 122, Executive Committee,

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson.

Mrs. Watson: Vote 100, Establishment 100, it says to
provide for the salaries of elected members of the Ex-
ecutive Committee, expenditures for Commonwealth
Parliamentary Association. Am [ not correct?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams.

Mr. Willlams: Mr. Chairman, the salary figure in
Establishment 100 is based on paying the twelve mem-
bers of this Assembly, including three appointed mem-
bers to the Executive Commitiee. The salaries for Lhe
fourth member of the Executive Committee, the Ter-
ritorial appointee, appears in Establishment 120.

Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, that's all I want.
Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon.

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: That's in the salary range of
$45,403.00.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson, I think you are infer-
ring that you would like to see it under this Iistablish-
ment.

Mrs. Watson: Right. Mr. Chairman, we've been
hearing we need a fourth member on the Executive
Committee. There is money in the budget. Right? So [
am asking whether the money was put into 100. That’s
all. Whether the elected, whether it was put in for an
elected position and taken out of the Administration.

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard?

Hon. Mrs. Wl.yard: The answer to that question is
no. It was not put in this vote. You will find it in Vote 120
which says, salary for an Assistant Commissioner
(Administrative) retained for Ex-Com Member.

Mr. Chairman: Establishment 100. Clear?
Some Members: Clear.

Mr. Chairman: Establishment 120. Administrative
Services. $784,800.00.
Mr. Taylor?

Hon. Mr. Tayler: Yes, Mr. Chairman, it is at this
point I would like torise and say that, under Clerk of the
Assembly, you will note on Page 14, Establishment 120,
Administrative Services; and as you will note also, on
Page 9, the whole department, Vote 1, Administrative
Services, and I think the time has come, and I think that
this Legislature is now mature enough, that we should
have, in isolation, our own budget for this Legislative
Assembly.

The Clerk of the Assembly’s duties on Page 14 are
shown as Clerk of the Assembly. The Executive Com-
mittee and Commissioner’s Support, and I don’t really
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know how our Clerk, with the many, many chores that
she does have to do, both on the administration side of
government and on the legislative side of government,
can really caleulate what portion of her salary or what
portion of her time, indeed, is spent working these two
positions.

It would be my hope, Mr. Chairman, that at some
point in time the Clerk of the Assembly would be just
that. The Clerk of the Assembly. And function strictly
for and in the service of the Assembly, and that another
person would be with the Administration and work with
the [Kxecutive Committee and the Commissioner’s sup-
port staff.

It was brought to mind a few days ago, in reading a
report from our colleagues in the Legislative Assembly
in Saskatchewan. They stood a special committee to
study the rules and procedures and it was interesting,
and 1 cile from thal document, they say in part of their
report: “the principle of a continuous and impartial
service to Parliament provided by a staff responsible
only to Parliament and distinet from a civil service has
roots firmly imbedded in Parliamentary history. A Par-
liament must have its own independent and competent
support staff and adequate services if the vital role of
Parliament, in its review of the activities of government
and its servants, is to be well served.”

[ found those words, Mr. Chairman, most appropriate
to the question I addressed today, and it seems to me
that as a first step in the evolution to an independent
support staff for this Legislature that we could well, and
ought well, ask of the administration of the Government
of the Yukon that at least our budget — that in budget-
ing, that our budget provisions be kept separately and
shown separately from those of the administration.

I would like, at this time, Mr. Chairman, to propose a
motion and it would be moved by myself, seconded by
Mr. Hibberd, that a separate vote be established for the
Yukon Legislative Assembly, and that the said Vote
encompass the following:

(1) Statutory emoluments payable to Members of the
Legislature;

(2) Canadian Parliamentary Association activities;

(3) Operation of Committees of the Assembly;

(4) Members’ seryices, similar to those provided to
Members of Legislature throughout the Common-
wealth, and

(5) Administrative support services to the Assembly.

I would sincerely ask, Mr. Chairman, for the full sup-
port of all Members of the Legislature in this regard,
and I do have copies of this Resolution for distribution,
Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman: It has been moved by Mr. Taylor
that a separate vote be established for the Yukon Legis-
lative Assembly and that the said Vote encompass the
following:

(1) Statutory emoluments payable to Members of the
Legislature;

(2) Canadian Parliamentary Association activities;

(3) Operation of Committees of the Assembly;

(4) Members’ services, similar to those provided to
Members of Legislatures throughout the Common-
wealih, and

(5) Administrative support services to the Assembly.

Mr. McKinnon?




Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, just for some
clarification for information. I have no trouble with the
resolution at all, but I understood that the Committee on
Rules, Privileges and Elections was working on a
Yukon Legislative Assembly Act which would encom-
pass, as in all provincial legislatures, the vote of their
Legislative Assembly in a separate vote.

I'm just wondering whether the Members felt that it
shouldn’t come together as an all-encompassing type of
legislation with a separate vote, or they felt that we
should go ahead with this Resolution at this time.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor?

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Mr. Chairman, I would like to
make it clear in response to the Honourable Member’s
query, that there is no intention to interfere in any way,
shape or form with the functions of the Committee in
developing a Legislative Assembly Ordinance,

This resolution would be designed to, you know, inas-
much as we have no report on this it’s hard for any
Member to know whether it is indeed in conflict. I would
not think it would be and it is certainly not intended to.

I think that the Resolution would give support to the
Committee, if indeed this happens to be one of their
considerations,

Mr. Chairman: Yes, as Chairman of that Commit-
tee, I can report that there is no conflict between this
motion and the work that is being done by the Commit-
tee.

Mr. McCall?

Mr. McCall: Mr. Chairman, I'm a little concerned
about this Yarticular motion. It may have been touched
upon briefly by the Committee but, before this Motion
was introduced, I don’t think that the whole Committee
had an opportunity to look at this particular Motion.

I would like to propose an amendment to the resolu-
tion, and I would move that this particular motion be
referred to Committee of Rules and Privileges before it
is duly processed.

Mr. Chairman: Your amendment is out of order.
The Committee of the Whole does not have the power to
do that, Mr. McCall.

Mrs. Whyard?

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, I just wondered
whether the mover of this Motion intended to sign it?

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Mr. Chairman, indeed; I'm sorry,
it was an oversight.

Mr. Chairman: Is there any further debate?
Hon. Mr. Taylor: Question.

Mr. Chairman: Are you ready for the question?
Some Members: Question.

Mr. Chairman: Are you agreed?

Some Members: Agreed.
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Mr. Chairman: The Motion is carried.
(Motion carried)

Mr. Chairman: Isthere any further debate on Estab-
lishment 1207
Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Are we on page 147
Mr. Chairman: Yes.

Mrs. Watson: Man years, Executive Committee. I
was confused at a couple of the things that were said
during the last debate. Now, who were those five man
years, what are the positions?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, those five positions
are comprised of four secretarial positions and an As-
sistant Commissioner position.

Mrs. Watson: Thank you.
Mr, Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, then who are the two
support staff for the Commissioner?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, those positions are a
Secretary, and an internal auditor.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watsen: Mr. Chairman, the internal auditor is
not a new position, is it?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?
Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, no it’s not.
Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: A further question. Establishment 120,
Primary 20, Professional and Special Services are for
consultant fees and for studies, am I correct!?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?
Mr. Williams: That is correct, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: In the Clerk of the Assembly, we have
$78,200.00 for professional and special services.

Under the Executive Committee, we have $55,000.00.
Under the Commissioner support staff, we have 9,000.
We are just going to come to the next sesssion of the
budget, we'll deal with the Socio-economic Planning
Committee, who are supposed to be preparing and as-
sessing and bringing forth reports and studying certain
things and making recommendations, and here we have
well over $125,000.00 for further studies.



Now, I would like to know the Clerk of the Assembly,
the 78,000, is any of that money allotted to the Legisla-
ture, or is that all of the money for the government for
studies?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, I can give you a break-
down of the Professional and Special Services for all of
Establishment 120.

First of all, under the Clerk of the Assembly, there is
$78,200.00. That’s comprised of $68,200.00 for the Han-
sard contract, and another $10,000.00 for a Clerk’s con-
ference, which is to be hosted in the Yukon this year.

Under the Executive Committee, there is $55,000.00.
That’s comprised of $45,000.00, which is an uncomitted
figure, which has been in the base for at least two years
and perhaps longer, and 10,000.00 for a study in relation
to the Elections Ordinance.

Then under Commissioner’s support, there is
$9,200.00, which is budgeted for a study for a Land Plan-
ner. That’s to cover a contract, the remaining portion of
acontract. I believe the contract is at least one year old,
and perhaps two years old.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, a land planner?

Mr. Williams: I hope I've got that correct, Mr.
Chairman. It’s the Land Use Planner, Mr. Chambers’
contract.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, why isn’t it under Local
Government?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon?

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, it was transfer-
red from Local Government to Commissioner Support
Services , because the majority of Mr. Chambers’ time
will be used at a committee which is being set up pres-
ently on land selection criteria, where Mr. Chambers’
expertise will come more under the Commissioner’s
and Land Claim Duties, than the Department of Local
Government.

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard?

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, I note a change down-
ward in primary 10 to 12 salaries and wages. I wonder if
that means a change in man years.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, yes there is a change of
man years in that Establishment. Two positions, the
economist position and the statistician position have
been moved to the Economic Planning Unit, and then
another position has been added, a law clerk position so
there are two positions which have been transferred
out, plus one new position which has been added.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor?
Hon. Mr. Taylor: Yes, I just had one question that

occurred to me at this moment, Mr. Chairman, and |
perhaps could direct it to the Honourable Minister of
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Local Government.
I wonder if he could tell me how far advanced we are
on the study, respecting the Elections Ordinance?

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: I'm sorry, Mr. Chairman, I don’t
have the details on how far we are advanced on the
"lections Ordinance.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor?

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Mr. Chairman, that will be all right,
I will inquire within the administration. It’s just some-
thing that I happened to think of.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mr. Watson: Mr. Chairman, the rental for the Clerk of
the Assembly of $117,000.00, is the rental of the Legisla-
tive Chambers charged to that vote?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?
Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, that is correct.
Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, one more question, I
don’t know who can answer it. Are we going to be look-
ing for more office space up on the third floor as we
transfer more people up into the support staff? Who can
answer it?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon?

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: That's probably my depart-
ment, because I found out that I'm in charge of this
building just the other day, but I haven’t got that infor-
mation. I hope we will not have to be renting space back
from the Lynn Building, Mr. Chairman, in the next
year.

Mr. Chairman: Not until January the 1st of next year,
when the lease runs out.
Ms. Millard?

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, could we have a break-
down on primary 99, Miscellaneous?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, you can see it’s broken
into two activities, $6,000.00 has been allowed for enter-
tainment expenses incurred by Members of the Execu-
tive Committee, and $13,800.00 relates to entertainment
expenditures incurred by the Commissioner.

Mr. Chairman: I'm ignorant, Mr. Williams. What’s
nugatory payment?

Mr. Wiliams: I'm sorry, 1 don’t know.

Mr. Chairman: Does no one know? Even worse,
we're voting on things we don’t understand at all.

Committee will declare a brief recess.

(RECESS)



Mr. Chairman: 1 call Committee to order.

Now when we recessed, we were considering what
‘nugatory’meant. 1 have a definition. Trifling, worth-
less, not operative, ineffectual, invalid, So what are
nugatory payments?

Is there further debate on Establishment 1207

Ms. Millard.

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, just a couple of questions
on the reductions in Primary 32 and 41. Does this have
any relevance to the two positions being put over to the
Economic Unit?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams.

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, with respect to Prim-
ary 32, I'm not sure precisely why there’s been a reduc-
tion. The reduction has been quite slight but 1 think it
probably is related to the fact that twe of the positions
have been transferred oul and perhaps because the
original Estimate was a little bit high. But with respect
to Primary 41, the budget for 1976-77 was high because
of the necessity of replacing or updating our Ordinances
and buying new manuals or binders and 1 helieve there
were changed to Primary 41. There was a one time only
expenditure, hence the decrease.

Mr. Chairman: One twenty. Clear?
One Twenty-four. Intergovernmental Affairs.
$118,400.00.

Mr. Chairman: Clear?
Ms. Millard!?

Ms. Millard: I'll just make the comment that I'm glad
to see that the man years haven’t been increased this
time, so that we create another unit out of it next year.

Mr. Chairman: Clear? Establishment 125, Economic
Research and Planning, $242,800.00.
Mr.. Berger?

Mr. Berger: Mr. Chairman,‘nothing in 125, T just
wanted -- | was waiting for the Honourable Member
from Watson Lake to come back but he hasn’t arrived
yet.

Mr. Chairman: You might have to wait quite a while,
Mr. Berger.

Mr. Berger: It's referring to Vote 120, the motion he
made at that particular time, when he says a separate
vote could be established, does he mean a separate vote
at this session or the next session of the legislature?

Mr. Chairman: I believe he meant the next budget
session, Mr. Berger.

Mr. Sherlock?

Mr. Sherlock: Mr. Chairman, that was our under-
standing, and we would certainly take it that way, un-
less the House chooses otherwise.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, Economic Research

Page 185

and Planning, again, in Primary 20, we have $23,000.00
and $15,000.00 for special services and censultants’ fees.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, that amount is largely
uncommitted. That figure appeared in the estimates for
at least two years, and I believe perhaps even three
years.

The only commitment that I know of, I believe there is
apersonon aretainer to assist in the negotiations for the
land claims, but the remainder of the money is uncom-
mitted at this point in time.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I don’t care whether it's
uncommitted or not. We are setting up planning groups,
research groups and still we have to give them money to
have more research, to hire private researchers and
consultants.

I think it’s absolutely ridiculous, what we’re getting
into. I can see this thing growing, it has grown now
within the last 12 months, and it’s going to be like Topsy,
and it’s a very, very difficult thing to assess, to
evaluate, and I'm not very happy with it at all.

We have the - been informed that the land planner is
now going to be part of the group, under contract. We've
had five people, I believe, on the Land Claims Sec-
retariat, or four. Now we see that somebody else, there
is salary for a negotiator out of this. You know, we just
seem to be involved with-- right at the top, we seem to be
extremely top heavy in our government at the present
time, and getting bigger.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard.

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, I think in all fair-
ness that the Commissioner would appreciate an oppor-
tunity to speak to his vote. Has he been invited to attend
Committee?

Mr. Chairman: Yes, he has, Mrs. Whyard. After
speaking to you at recess, I spoke to him and he said that
he would hold himself available and would come if he
were required. So if there are questions that you would
like to put to the Commissioner he would be pleased to
appear .

Mrs. Watson.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, mine wasn't a question
for the Commissioner. It was an observation, it's a’
comment on what adangerous situation that I think that
we're getting into. We're getting into a pretty top-heavy
type of government.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke.

Mr., Lengerke: Yes, Mr. Chairman, with respect to
Primary 20, again whoever wants to answer, maybe, I
don’t feel that it’s, that the witnesses should answer
this, but maybe they will. Specialized services, or spe-
cial services. Give me an indication, could somebody
tell me what the special services are.

Mr. Chairman: What Establishment are you refer-



ring to?

Mr. Lengerke: I'm referring to 125, Primary 30. Par-
don me, not 30, 20. And it refers to Professional and
Special Services and again, we have the answer that
this is an item that’s been in the budget a number of
times, uncommitted. Still, it's in here and I would like to
know, you know, are there plans for the use of Profes-
sional and Special Services and how are they so iden-
tified? What’s in the mill?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams.
Mrs. Whyard.

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: I think that’s a question for the
Commissioner.

Mr. Chairman: Is it your request then that the Com-
missioner be asked to attend?

Some Members: Agreed.
Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke.

Mr. Lengerke: 1 would hope that, as we go down these
primaries, that there certainly are other questions for
the Commissioner. I'm sure there are.

Mr. Chairman: Very well, Committee will recess
until the Commissioner is present.

RECESS

Mr. Chairman: I now call this Committee to order.

Mr. Commissioner has now joined us to assist us in
our deliberations. We are considering Establishment
125.

Mr. Lengerke?

Mr. Lengerke: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

My question of the witness, namely Mr. Commis-
sioner, and I'm dealing with Establishment 125, Prim-
ary 20, and 1 the for a total of 38,000, is that the correct
figure there? And I'm just wondering, Mr. Commis-
sioner, if you can — as I understand it, that Primary
deals specifically with Special and Professional Ser-
vices, and could you identify to me how that is broken
down? Because under Professional and Special Ser-
vices there are about 20-odd categories, 1 believe; and
can you tell me how you've forecast that?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Commissioner?

Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Chairman, these are basi-
cally uncommitted. They are and could be used for
many things. In the past and in the present, they are still
being used for specifically a retainer for a lawyer to
assist the Land Claims Secretariat.

Other than that, I know of nothing that they are cur-
rently being used for, but we do envision as land claims
particularly increase in momentum and we get in-
volved in working groups, in discussing specific ele-
ments of a settlement, that we will require additional
personnel on a short term basis to provide advice and
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this type of activity, but there is no specific person or
project involved or on the horizon for the use of those
funds at this time.

Mr. Lengerke: Thank you very much.
Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke?

Mr. Lengerke: That explains it. I am glad to hear

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard?

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, I'm curious why there
was an estimate for '76-77 when this is what I understood
was a new unit this year. What was under Establish-
ment 125 last year?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Commissioner?

Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Chairman, the old figure,
'76-77 is the budget for the Land Claims Secretariat
alone.

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard?

Ms, Millard: Under the man years, how many of the
B people are secretarial help?

Mr. Commissioner: Two — sorry, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Chairman: Yes, Mr. Commissioner?

Mr. Commissioner: Two are specifically land
claims and a third is in the unit and is providing the
secretarial assistance to the Land Claims Secretariat,
so basically when required, three, and when the
secretary’s not required for land claims work she’s ful-
filling duties for the rest of the Economic and Planning
Unit.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, that's very interest-
ing, that we have that $38,000.00 uncommitted for extra
research, when the idea of establishing this unit was to
establish a unit where you could have your research and
planning done, so we are still putting another $38,000.00
for additional consultants plus, on Establishment 120,
Primary 20, under the Executive Committee, we have
an additional $55,000.00 for professional and special
services, and I don’t believe any of that is committed.

So it looks as though we are being really well re-
searched and well planned and well studied. In fact, we
are going to have so many planners and no workers.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke?

Mr. Lengerke: I hope the question I ask is with re-
gard to the economic development unit, but it’s of this
nature, Mr. Chairman — and I’ll address it to the Com-
missioner:

T understand — well, first off, let me establish this. Is
the Pipeline Co-ordinator answerable to this unit?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Commissioner?




Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Chairman, for administra-
tive purposes, he reports through that unit and co-
ordinates his work with them. In essence, up until this
time, he has been reporting directly to the Executive
Committee in terms of expediting the work that he’s
doing. But, indeed, he is part of the unit on contract.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke?

Mr. Lengerke: And I understand his salary, then,
Mr. Chairman, is recoverable from the Federal Gov-
ernment; is this correct?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Commissioner?
Mr. Commissioner: That is correct.
Mr. Lengerke: Okay, the other ....
Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke?

Mr. Lengerke: What 1 was trying to get at, with
respect to the Economic Planning Unit then and the
tie-in between the Pipeline Co-ordinator, I understand
Y.T.G. — and I commend you for this and I think it's an
excellent idea — have a request before the Minister of
Northern Affairs via the Treasury Board for around
$365,000.00 to do some work with respect to the pipeline,
and I'm wondering if then the people of this Economic
Planning Unit will be involved in that work that is to be
carried out under those funds?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Commissioner?

Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Chairman, I'm not exactly
sure, but in the few discussions that I've had I would
guess no, that these are extra funds requested from
Treasury Board to do with a very specific project over
which the Yukon Territorial Government had no say to
start with.

Inother words, it’s being imposed upon us. We feel we
must be prepared for it and so we have gone to Ottawa
and said, we believe that you should fund these extra
studies that will be required.

Now, they may be done, some of them indeed will be
done, in House, some of the wildlife studies will be done
by people in our Game Department, but the O and M
costs will be borne by the submission to Treasury
Board, the funds obtained through that submission.

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard.

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, I'd'like to ask, before
we pass this Estimate, that we be given a position de-
scription of each member of the eight man years and
salary range, if that’s possible.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Commissioner.

Mr. Commissioner: I believe in the submission that
I gave to the House earlier there is a description of each
position. The salary levels for each position were not
included, but I'm sure we can obtain those. As a matter
of fact, I think I have them here and could read them if
you so desire?
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Mr. Chairman: Please, Mr. Commissioner.

Mr. Commissioner: We’ll start with the Chief
Economic Research and Planning Officer. Range 50. Do
you want his exact salary.

Mr. Chairman: [ think the range would be approp-
riate, just the range.

Mr. Commissioner: The range is 50, and do Mem-
bers have a copy of what those ranges, what the actual
salary of those ranges, might be?

Mr. Chairman: No, Mr. Commissioner.

Mr. Commissioner: 1 would prefer just for the peo-
ple involved not to read their exact salary within the
range out before the House. I think it's in deference to
the Members, but the range of their salary is really
what you're looking for, is it not?

Ms. Millard: Mmm-hmmm.
Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke.

Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Chairman, I agree; I think it
should be just the range, really, I don’t think that the
actual salaries should be ...

Mr. Chairman: I think that’s really what the ques-
tioner was after, was the range.
Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, with respect, I'm not,
I don't care either way, but let us not forget that these
are public funds that are being expended and salaries
are not a secret. And if people want to have the salaries
read out in this House, there is nothing improper about
doing that at all.

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard — the range or the pre-
cise?

Ms. Millard: Well, actually what I was after was
what they were being paid, exactly, and if there is no
compunction about discussing a civil servant’s salary
on the floor of the House, 1 would like that.

In the position description, I really wanted the Civil
Service, Public Service, description of their job.

Mr. Chairman: Do you have that information or
would you like to bring it in?

Mr. Commissioner: 1 think that in view of the fact
that the Honourable Member wants the exact descrip-
tion of their jobs I'd best bring the whole issue in and
give it to each Member.

Ms. Millard: Thank you.
Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson.
Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, the $365,000.00 that

Mr. Commissioner was referring to, that isnot reflected
in the Main Estimates.



Mr. Chairman: Mr. Commissioner.

Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Chairman, I didn’'t mention
$365,000.00. One of the Members did.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, you agreed though
that you had gone to Treasury Board for funding.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, is the salary of the
Pipeline Co-ordinator then shown in the Estimates?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Commissioner.
Mr. Commissioner: No, it is not, Mr. Chairman.

Mrs. Watson: Well, Mr. Chairman, does not Y.T.G.
pay...

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?
Mrs. Watson: ... the Pipeline Co-ordinator?
Mr. Chairman: Mr. Commissioner.

Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Chairman, yes, indeed, he
is paid by us on a recoverable basis.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, if Y.T.G. pays his sal-
ary, then isn’t there a requirement, and again I suppose
I'll have to go to legal authority, to put it in our Esti-
mates and show it as a recovery?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Commissioner?

Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Chairman, we had author-
ity to spend up to $35,000.00 in this fiscal year for a
Pipeline Co-ordinator, his salary and expenses, and we
still do not know how much of that money will be spent in
this fiscal year.

Soit's impossible to put an exact figure in any budget,
supps or budget, for next year, for yext year we have no
idea whatsoever how much money we may get for
studies, for Pipeline Co-ordinator, or anything to do
with pipeline-related activities, from the Federal Gov-
ernment, and thus there is nothing in the budget to re-
flect that.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, isn't there a require-
ment at least to put a dollar in there, if you have no idea,
and where was the 35,000 shown? Was it in this fiscal
year in 1976, was it in the supplementary budget? How
— you can’t pay someone unless you have authority
through this.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Commissioner?

Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Chairman, there was
$20,000.00 in Establishment 120 in the supps. There is
nothing in the Main Estimates to cover the cost of this
pipeline program for 1977-78.
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Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, with respect, I'm sure
that there is a requirement that there be some figure. I
realize that you have no idea how much is going to be
required, but if you recognize the fact in '7€ that
$20,000.00 was put in and the program is going to be
accelerated, shouldn’t there be some amount of money
in the budget now?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Commissioner?

Mr. Commissioner: Well, Mr. Chairman, I'm not
totally familiar with this process, but I suggest that
perhaps, in Vote 20 which is Professional and Special
Services, there are funds there, and Mr. -- the Pipeline
Co-ordinator could be hired for a certain period of time
out of those funds with the cost recovery basis, and an
excess would come in as a supplementary in the next
fiscal year.

It might be one dollar more, it might be $325,000.00
more, I ...

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke?

Mr. Lengerke: Maybe I could get at it this way then.
Mr. Chairman, in a question to the Commissioner, has
the Territorial Government in fact signed any sort of an
agreement with the Federal Government then for this
type of funding, and do you set that to one side, and have
we got an agreement by which the terms we operate, to
expend this kind of monies?

1 think that’s the normal procedure that happens, Mr.
Chairman. I know from my own experience in other
provinces, having dealt with the Department of Reg-
ional and Economic Expansion, for instance, and spe-
cial development agreements and special research ag-
reements, this is the way it's done, these dollars are
identified.

There’s nothing wrong with it; I think it’s a great
exercise, but I think it has to be shown in the books of
this government accordingly. Are we, in fact, signing an
agreement, Mr. Commissioner?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Commissioner?

Mr. Commissioner: Not to my knowledge, no offi-
cial agreement.

We have Treasury Board authority at the present
time, special Treasury Board authority to spend
$35,000.00 on pipeline-related activities, those pipeline-
related activities associated with the Pipeline Co-
ordinator.

We have nothing further, nor even a promise of actual
funds, but we are hopeful that Treasury Board will ap-
prove a submission made by Department of Indian and
Northern Affairs which includes studies that will be
carried out by this government, by the Yukon Territor-
ial Government.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: You know, Mr. Chairman, I think that
there should be an item in our budget to signify Pipeline
Co-ordinator, and as the Commissioner says, that we’re
hopeful that it will be a hundred per cent recoverable.



However, there is no indication, you know, you
haven’t had complete agreement on this, so that if it
isn’t a hundred per cent recoverable and you want to
expend — expand the studies on the pipeline and con-
tinue the Co-ordinator, then wouldn’t it or shouldn’t it be
necessary to call back the Legislature and to advise
them and to determine how much further funding, be-
cause then it’s going to be Y.T.G. tax dollars.

It's a different thing, so I think it's very necessary to
get that Pipeline Co-ordinator in there somewhere.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Cornmissioner?

Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Chairman, the Pipeline
Co-ordinator is not aman year in this government. He's
a contract employee, and thus far the policy of the
Yukon Territorial Government has been that if the Fed-
eral Government are unwilling to carry on to provide
funds for this type of activity, then the Y.T.G. is not
going to get involved in it.

That has been the policy. The Pipeline Co-ordinator,
under which the Pipeline Co-ordinator who was hired,
and it is still our contention that since the pipeline is a
manifestation of some other agency, that is, the Federal
Government, studies and work that are carried out
should be paid for by them, and we do not really want to
commit the Yukon taxpayer to funding extravagant
studies of a project over which we have had no say in
initiating and which we have very little control of.

Thus, to put funds in would indicate that we are wil-
ling to go ahead and fund out of our own budget, and I
ask you for advice on that.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor.

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Well, Mr. Chairman, I think the
Honourable Member from Kluane has a pretty good
point. I can remember, in the many years | have served
in this House, various times when the federal govern-
ment, embarking upon programs of their insistence in
the Yukon, have insisted, and in fact called special ses-
sions of this Legislature, to ensure that a bill was passed
to introduce this new program and to pass the funds
from an embarrassed federal government, milk them
through the territorial government, I give vou one ex-
ample when we got out foxed many years ago
in Dawson, over the embarrassment of the federal gov-
ernment at that time.

There is, it’s always been a principle that, when gov-

ernment want to spend money, create new policies and
this type of thing, that they come first to the Legislature
and you might consider these Estimates and any accep-
tance of these Estimates as being in fact an acceptance
by the Legislature of the policies that are reflected from
within it.
_ I'think the Honourable Member from Kluane has an
interesting point in that the Pipeline Coordinator is not
reflected within these Estimates, even, as she pointed
out, to the extent of one dollar being placed in the Esti-
mates, you know, and the manner handled in supps,
v'hich ought not to be either. But, if the Legislature is to
have effectual control over the finances and the ac-
tivities of government, it is extremely important, as the
Honourable Member has pointed out, that these be re-
flected in the Estimates.

I would like to say that I'm extremely pleased, per-
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sonally, to see a Pipeline Coordinator in the Territory. I
think it’s an important position, notwithstanding who
pays for it, the operation of that particular function, or
be it by contract or salary.

The question is, and the legitimate question has been
raised by the Honourable Member, that this ought to be
reflected in this budget and it seems to me that the
government should insert into this budget, somewhere,
provision for the Pipeline Coordinator, be it a dollar, be
it $30,000.00 or whatever, for the consideration of the
House. In that way, we would adopt the policy of having
a Pipeline Coordinator in the first place and maintain-
ing him.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Commissioner.

Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Chairman, under the vote
wording, to provide funding for an economic research
and planning roup, and under the uncommitted funds of
$38,000.00 in Primary 20, we feel that there is indeed
authority there to hire a Pipeline Coordinator under
contract. Since we have no idea of how much money is
going to be required, it may be adollar, and we’llhave to
come back with supps.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, we're coming back
again to the same thing I was arguing about earlier on
Municipal Aid and grants, the extension of it. To use
vote wording, finangle figures around within the
budget. Here we are doing it again with the Pipeline
Coordinator. We are not, I am certainly not questioning
the function or the necessity of having a Pipeline Coor-
dinator, but we would like the records straightened in
our financial statement of the Yukon Government and
the Honourable Member from Watson Lake put it very
well. I just regret that he wasn’t a little bit more under-
standing when it came up in a previous instance in the
House this afternoon.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke?

Mr.Lengerke: Yes, asIsaidearlier, Mr. Chairman,
again 1 welcome federal funds for any type of project
that we can have and certainly the initiative in putting
forth a proposal and all the rest of it is to be commended,
but I also understand that the pipeline, in order to prop-
erly assess the pipeline, that a socio-economic baseline
has to be compiled. This is what I'm told.

I'm wondering, that, you know, that there’s going to
be dollars in this $365,000.00 to do this, I'm wondering if
this will offset some of the salaries that are indicated in
the Economic Research and Planning Unit who are also
going to be doing some of the very same type of work.

What I'm trying to do here, Mr. Chairman, is avoid
duplication. I don’t care what taxpayer is that pays for
it, but we’re all taxpayers and we all pay into the pot,
and we don’'t have to do these jobs three and four times.
And this is just what I want to be assured of, is that if we
do get the funding from the federal government for the
Pipeline side of the research, that there’s some very
basic research that has to be done first that can be used
for a number of the other categories that have been
explained in the paper of the Unit, the Economic Plan-
ning.
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So in fact, are we going to have someplace along the
line, some more recoveries for those salaries, as well?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Commissioner.

Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Chairman, if baseline data
is gathered through the funds provided for pipeline re-
search, I can guarantee you, we're not going to pay
somebody else out of the funds in this government to
collect data again and that way avoid duplication.

Mr. Chairman: Establishment 125. Are we clear?
Some Members: Clear.

Mrs. Watsen: No, Mr. Chairman. You can proceed
with it as far as I'm concerned, I don’t like handling our
spending of money in this way. You can clear it, but I'm
certainly going to oppose it. It's not the amount of
money, it's the way it’s being put in.

Mr. Chairman: Wellthen, Mrs. Watson, doyou have
any specific proposals?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I've been making
these points all afternoon. I think people are getting a
little bored.

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard?

Ms. Millard: 1 wouldn't like to clear it until the in-
formation I've requested comes back.

Mr. Chairman: Very well.
Establishment 140, Public Inquiries, $100.00.

Some Members: Clear.

Mr. Chairman: 150. Plebiscites, $100.00.

Clear? Establishment 160, Public Service Commis-
sion, $896,200.00, and I refer you to your Appendix, Page
11.

Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, just another very un-
popular comment, but we were told yesterday that we
got a great deal of back-up material for the bedget and
the Appendix. There are 27 pages, and the first 11 are
details of the coding of the primaries.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke?

Mr. Lengerke: Establishment 160, Primary 34,
under Recruitment, it’s $377,000.00, and it’s for removal
of furniture and personal effects. I'm just wondering
how many moves that suggests. In other words, what
was their forecast, it would just be very interesting how
they ended up at $377,000. I mean, it could have been
400,000, it could have been 300, just I would like to know
how they figured that one out?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?
Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, that’s calculated on

the assumption of 105 moves comprised of 45 civil ser-
vice moves, and 60 moves of teachers. The total in-
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volved is 105 moves.
Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke?

Mr. Lengerke: [assume that is drawn from the pre-
vious year’'s experience?

Are you up in your moves or down, or what's goinon?
It would be interesting to know just how stable a work
force we've got.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr, Williams: Mr. Chairman, in 1974-75, there were
101 moves. In 1975-76, there were 92 and in 1976-77, there
were 123.

The prediction for next year is 105.

Mr. Chairman: Do you have the comparable costs
as well, Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Yes, I do, Mr. Chairman. In 1974-75,
the comparable cost was $266,000.00; 1975-76, it was
$331,000.00; 1976-77, we're estimating $421,000.00 and for
1977-78, we are saying $501,000.00.

Now, when 1 say $501,000.00, that disagrees with the
$617,000.00 shown in the Main Estimates, because in
that, I'm only reflecting advertising costs, costs for re-
locating furniture and interviewing costs, so the differ-
ence helween that $501,000.00 and the 617 in the Main
Estimates relates to the salaries of the people involved
in recruiting, and YTG staff training fees, plus various
small miscellaneous amounts.

Mr. Chairman: 1 wonder if we could have some
clarification of E.M.O. training, $13,700.007
Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, I’'m sorry, I don’t
know the details of their planned training program for
next year, but under the E.M.0. function they do carry
out exercises from time to time, and in addition, I be-
lieve the E.M.0. Coordinator does have sessions with
various community coordinators, but sepcifically what
their plans are for next year, I'm sorry, I don’t know.

Mr. Chairman: 1 wonder if we could have a little
more accurate breakdown of that, Mr. Williams. It
seems to be a very high figure in terms of what I know
their training program is.

Ms. Millard?

Ms. Millard: Yes, I was going to ask that myself,
because from the people who attended it in Dawson,
from some of the people who attended it in Dawson, they
were very discouraged, it wasn't very relevant to the
town.

So it would be wise to get more information on it, I
think.

Theother question [ had was under Recruitment Staff
Training, $30,000.00, is this a new item, since I noticed
there's quite an increase under Primary 20 from 28,000
to 64,000 and it looks like the increase is under the 30,000,
under recruitment.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?




Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, it's not a new item. In
previous years, we had a budget of, I believe either
15,000 or $20,000.00 for staff training.

For 1976-77, the government had wanted to increase it
to $30,000.00 but because of the restraint program they
didn’t. In 1977-78, they are in fact, making that increase
in staff training from 15,000 to $30,000.00.

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard?

Ms. Millard: I'm wondering if our witness can give
us a little detail on how this is spent?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, the expenditures of
these funds is administered by the Public Service
Commission, and what their normal procedure is is to
canvass all departments to find out what training needs
the departments have identified for their staff.

They then tally up all the individual departmental
requests, and between themselves and the departments
they set priorities to see who will in fact be allocated the
$30,000.00, so it’s a consultation process between the
Eubéic Service Commission and various department

eads.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, the staff training for
the teachers is part of their collective agreement, is it
not?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, this particular item
that we're discussing relates to staff training, other
than for teachers. When we get into Vote 3, we’ll see that
there are additional funds budgeted for teacher in-
service training, etc. This is strictly for non-teachers’
staff training.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I was aware of that,
but isn’t there a requirement for teachers under the
collective agreement, to provide in-service training and
some training funding for sabbatical leave and this sort
of thing? Just for teachers, as part of the agreement.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, I'm referring to
Vote 3 in relation to the collective agreement. There’s a
— if my memory serves me correctly, I believe it’s 15
thousand point 4 available for professional development
of teachers, in relation to upgrading them in their vari-
ous areas of teaching.

Inrelation — could you ask the other question in rela-
tion to the sabbatical, I didn’t catch the second ques-
tion?

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, sabbatical leave, the
point I was making that under the — for in-service train-
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ing, for training for employees, but with teachers it’s
part of the agreement, and I'm wondering with, if this
Vote, whether it is also part of the collective agreement
of the Public Service?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, at this point in time,
this is not covered by the collective agreement.

Mrs. Watson: Thank you.
Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang?

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, in relation to the
sabbatical leave, due to the collective agreement, that’s
covered in Vote 3 as well, and it’s under the collective
agreement, I believe, for four teachers.

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard?

Ms. Millard: Mr.Chairman, I'm just curious how an
employee's salary while in training relates to this. This
doesn’t include their salary, I would expect, it’s above
and beyond that, and if I could have some description —
just a brief sort of idea of what they do.

Is it like sending someone out of the Territory for a
separate course, or what?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, there's — the Public
Service Commission uses a multitude of ways of carry-
ing through on this program.

Under this program, in some cases, people are actu-
ally sent outside to attend courses. In some cases, the
Public Service Commission brings instructors up here
and holds courses.

In other cases, for instance, people might take night
courses or correspondence courses. The charges which
are made against the Public Service Commission do not
include the person’s salary while on training. That
$30,000.00 covers things like tuition fees, registration
fees, that type of item.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke?

Mr. Lengerke: Yes, Mi. Chairman, Primary 61,
Rental of Machinery and Office Equipment, and I know
it’s a very small item, I think two and a half thousand
dollars, but I was just curious to know what does — what
type of machinery or office equipment is that, or is it for
aircraft, rental of aircraft?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, that’s for the rental of
an 1.B.M, memory typewriter. In the Public Service
Commission, they’ve got a requirement for many form
letters or letters which are very similar, one to another.
Therefore, by utilizing this particular machine, it de-
creases typing time substantially, and you’ll notice that
in the Public Service Commission, there has been a
slight decrease in man years, and one of the reasons
why there has been a decrease in man years is that the
Commission has found that while using this machine, it



has been unnecessary for them, to in fact, utilize their
full staff complement.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke?
Do I understand it's rental of the

Mr. Lengerke:
machine?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams.

Mr. Williams: Yes, Mr. Chairman, that’s rental of
the machine. They are quite expensive.

Mr. Lengerke: Okay, this is what I was going to ask.
Why don’t we buy one? I'm sure if it’s useful in that
department, it's going to be useful in many, many de-
partments and I know, when I think of the machine that
he speaks of, and, you know, I realize that they're pretty
costly, but why don’t we somehow work it out on a
rental-purchase agreement or something like this so
that, in fact, we do own it, or, you know, I'm sure you
looked at the economics of it, but let’s hear that.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams.

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, I can’t give you the
details of the economics of the situation, but I know it
has been looked at from time to time. For instance, in
addition to the Public Service Commission, I believe the
Department of Legal Affairs also has the same or a
similar machine. In Treasury we’ve got, not the same
machine but a similar type of machine.

Periodically, people have looked at the possibility of
either buying a machine and establishing a small pool.
At the last time it was reviewed it was decided that, for
the time being at least, the way it was operating right
now was, in fact, the superior way. However, yes, it is
reviewed periodically and if it becomes more beneficial
to establish a small pool of these machines, I'm sure
that will be done,

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I notice that in your
man years you're not giving us any indication, you are
not giving us any indication of whether they are perma-
nent positions or casuals.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams.

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, with respect to the
Public Service Commission, of the 13.75 man years,
thirteen man years are permanent and point seven five
are casuals. Now that compares with last years figure
of fourteen man years, of which all were permanent.
Within the complement of fourteen man years, the Pub-
lic Service Commission found that they, in fact, never
did have to hire the fourteenth person. What they do
have to do from time to time is hire casual clerical
assistance. Therefore, that particular change has been
made in their Establishment for this year.

Mr. Chairman: Establishment 160, are we clear?
Mrs. Whyard.

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, I don’t wish to
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delay this item, but since the person responsible for this
department is not here with us today, I think it might be
of interest to all members to know that recently, one of
the training courses given through the Public Service
Commission of the Yukon Territory, was in conjunction
with the Federal Public Service and it’s one that I'm
very interested in and it’s a course in pre-retirement for
public servants prior to their retirement from the public
service.

For some years I have envied the facility offered to
federal Public Servants in that area. And, on inquiry, I
find that courtesies were extended to include a number
of our public servants in this course. The numbers in-
volved became so large that they were no longer taken
to Edmeonton to get the training, but the trainer now
comes up here and combines the class with federal and
territorial and I think this is great.

What they're getting in that course is instruction on
what to do, how to face it, how to plan, something which
is a real social service to the people in this job. I just
wish that everybody had it, including myself. But, this is
the kind of training that’s ongoing, as well. As I was
going to say, Mr. Chairman, it's not just the training
that takes place here for E.M.O. I imagine that figure
also includes the sending of people down to the E.M.O.
training centre near Ottawa. As we all know, there are
representatives from each community go there.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman: Clear?

Vote one. $2,374,100.00. Yes, we will defer that, we
haven’t cleared two of the Establishments yet.

Vote 2.

Mr. Taylor.

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Yes,Iwonder if the Commissioner
could be excused from the Witness Table, at this time?

Mr. Chairman: Certainly. Is it Committee’s wish
that the Executive Committee member for Treasury be
present during the consideration of this Budget?

Some Members: Agreed.

Mr. Chairman: Two. $2,524,700.00. Establishment
200 - Treasury. $1,015,900.00.

Ms. Millard: 1saw advertised a position for, I don’t
know what, a data processor, I guess it would be called.
I'm wondering if there has been an actual change? Al-
though there is not a change in numbers, has there been
a change in the man years themselves and how they’re
allocated?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Sherlock?

Mr. Sherlock: Mr. Chairman, yes, there has been a
change in the reclassification of a couple of positions, to

give us expertise in an area which we did not have
before.

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard?

Ms. Mhillard: Mr. Chairman, why has Primary 30
doubled?



Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, I can give you, on a
simple basis, why has it doubled. There's probably two
general answers; first of all, prices have gone up during
the last year, therefore everything costs a little bit
more; and secondly, I think it’s safe to say that provi-
sion is being made for more travel this year than what
has gone on in the past, and I can give you examples of
what is presently contemplated under the Treasury
budget for travel.

For instance, under the administrative sub-activity,
money has been allowed for travel to the annual De-
partment Heads meeting; travel to Ottawa for inter-
departmental committee meetings; travel for the
board of survey, and provision for one trip to the N.W.T.
for discussion of related - or not problems, I suppose,
discussions to see how other people do things.

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: With respect, I think that’s the
wrong place to go.

Mr. Williams: If I can continue, Mr. Chairman.
Under the Accounting Section, the travel presently con-
templated includes a trip to the Canadian Fuel, Tobacco
and Retail Tax Conference. There’s money in that
budget for the hosting of the Western Canadian Fuel
Tax Conference here in Whitehorse, and there's money
grovided for audits of - tax audits and liquor store au-

its.

Establishment - under Budgets and Systems, there’s
an amount allowed of $200.00, and it's a nominal amount
in the last two years. It’s been necessary, or at least
we’ve been requested from time to time to go to Dawson
City, for instance, to assist KVA with various things,
and it’s a nominal amount.

Under 6.4, Data Processing, I don’t have a detailed
breakdown, but a great deal of that is related to the one
time only cost associated with converting our Medicare
records from C.U.& C. in Vancouver to an in-house op-
eration, and naturally there’s a fair bit of travel time
associated with that program, going down there, con-
verting program language and bringing things back up
here.

Under Small Business Loans - I’'m sorry, there is no-
thing under Small Business Loans, so that’s a break-
down of the contemplated travel, making up the
$15,000.00 total.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke?

Mr. Lengerke: Yes, just clarification to me again,
61, Primary 61, under Data Processing, the $89,400,
maybe Mr. Williams could tell me there, that’s a rental
of a computer I imagine, again, is it?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Yes, Mr. Chairman, almost that en-
tire amount is related to the computer.

As the Members are probably aware, the computer
which we have is being upgraded from a Model 12 com-
puter, or rather from a Model 10 to a Model 12, and the
incremental rental costs associated with that is approx-
imately $38,000.00.

The other - that comprises most of the change, the
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other amounts are just normal price increases.
Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Hon. Mr. Taylor: The question I was going to ask
was asked by the Honourable Member from Whitehorse
Riverdale.

I was just a little interested in knowing, now that
we've graduated in government from the colloquial pen
and inkwell, through the ballpoint and into computers, I
assume that we rent these computers, that we cannot
buy a computer for government, and is this work actu-
ally done outside? Is it, like do we send the material
outside for processing a large amount of this computer
work, or is this in fact done within this building?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Sherlock?

Mr. Sherlock: Mr. Chairman, the work is in-house
work. We rent the computer, we have our own prog-
rammers who design and develop our own programs.

We do have some canned programs, that's the prog-
rams that we buy off the market and then have to adapt
it to our own needs.

The new computer, if I may, gives us considerably
more flexibility than we had before. The capacity, the
storage capacity is about 10 times what it was before.
The printer is about 4 or 5 times faster, so we will be able
to do a lot more processing in the normal 8 hours, with-
out having to go to two shifts, which would mean extra
people.

These are the kinds of things that were considered
when we went to the upgrading of a better computer.

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard?

Ms. Millard: Mr. Chairman, back to the old rental
problem here. I noticed that this is one of the few places
where it’s gone down, rather than up. Most other estab-
lishments have gone up, Primary 60.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, Members probably
recall when we were dealing with the supplementals,
there were a number of adjustments in rentals.

The original forecasted estimate for Treasury for
1976-77 turned out to be too high. They had originally
thought that we would have a lot more space than what
we did have. When we got to the building, the space
actually assigned to us was less than the space origi-
nally anticipated.

Mr. Chairman: All departments missed on their es-
timates.

Mr. Sherlock: As a matter of fact, Mr. Chairman,
they moved the wall on us, they moved it in.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, when, I believe you
said when we were going through the supplementaries,
that you were going to be doing the processing of - I was
going to say land claims, but it’s not, it’s medical
claims, instead of taking - you were taking over from



CU&C.

Now, the operation, the cost of the contract with
C.U.& C. has always been charged to Y.H. Medicare
scheme. How are you going to pull out the costs of doing
that work for Medicare scheme out of Treasury, when
you take over the function of C.U.& C.?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, at the present time,
we don’t prorate our data processing costs to individual
departments, although that’s something that might
someday happen, but perhaps I can provide a little bit of
information on that particular conversion.

If, for instance, the proposed coversion was in place
on April 1 of this year, the annual incremental costs to
Treasury would be approximately $44,000.00, and in ad-
dition, the annual incremental costs to the Department
of Health for four more staff would be about $54,000.00,
so an annual basis, it would cost us $94,000.00 to process
those Medicare records.

The amount of money we will actually be saving is in
the neighbourhood of $135,000.00, so that there is a sig-
nificant saving associated with our taking that function
over.

But to get back to the Member’s point, it now means
that the total costs will no longer appear strictly in the
health vote, Vote 5, a portion of the costs are going to be
in Treasury, i.e. that portion associated with the rental
of the larger computer.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard?

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, if I could speak
to that point as well. We're not bringing home the Con-
stititution, we’re bringing home the computer, ha, ha,
ha.

One of the main reasons, in addition to the efficiency
and the savings, for making this decision was, that we
will have within our own control the operations of the
postings and of the actual program here, rather than
relying on staff of a company in Vancouver, and we've
learned the hard way, that there are times when this can
be very awkward.

One is, if there is a mail strike; and two, we have
found to our horror, there was a strike, not of the emp-
loyees in that company, but of the administration, and
we were held up for sometime then as well, and we were
powerless to obtain any action on the data recording and
returns that we required, in order to pay bills.

Mr. Chairman: I think it's rather remarkable that
C.U.& C. is simply a carrier, and yet their costs to this
government were in the range of $220,000.00?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, in the fiscal year
1976-77, 1 believe the processing charge is approxi-
mately $10,000.00 a month. That contract will have to be
renewed as of April 1,1977, and therefore, we don’t know
exactly-whenIsayit’s going to cost us 135,000 for C.U.&
C., that’s just a guestimate as to what the new contract
will be on an annual basis, but for the current fiscal
year, it’s approximately $10,000.00 a month which we
pay to C.U.& C.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke?
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Mr. Lengerke: Easy question, Mr. Chairman.
Changing the subject completely to Small Business
Loans, I see the man years there is .5 man years. Is that
a decrease?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, no, what we - in our
Revenue Section of the Accounting Department, there
is one person who splits their time between doing work
on Small Business Loans and doing work on our own
accounts receivables, so what we do is, there is one
person involved, and half her time is charged to Small
Business Loans, and the other half of her time is ab-
sorbed under the Accounting Section, so under Account-
ing, you'll see 24 and a half man years, if you take that
half man year and that half man year under Small Busi-
ness Loans, they add up - that accounts for that one
particular person.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke?

Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Chairman, just on that same
subject, I realize this is for the accounting of that, but
maybe with Mr. Gillespie here, he can tell me how many
dollars - of somebody from Treasury, how many dollars
were utilized out of the Small Business Loans last year,
and I understand that the amount of loan available now
has been increased, has it not, and I would hope while 1
was looking at the man years, I was hoping that with the
increase, maybe we're getting a little more utilization
of that particular fund.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Gillespie?

Mr. Gillespie: Mr.Chairman, the amount, theupper
limit for loans has remained at $50,000.00. As to the
remainder of your question, I'll have to defer or refer to
the Members of Treasury.

Do you have figures for the amount of loans issued?
Because we could bring that information in, if that is
satisfactory.

Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Chairman. I'd like that informa-
tion. I'm not going to hold this up for that, bui I think it’s
interesting to know and I'd like to know also how we
stand? Have we got any outstanding debts that are,
havenot been looked after properly? Just really, what is
the performance of that particular fund?

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, we will get that infor-
mation. I would hope that we do, in a sense, have some
bad debts, because if we are a lender of last resort, if we
are functioning properly there should be some.

Mr. Lengerke: Is that a warning, Mr. Gillespie.

Mr. Gillespie: I don’t know, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard.

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, if I could make a
comment. There is no need for the Honourable Member
to worry on that particular point. There are always bad

debts in that area. We have citizens here who have
claimed those loans and take off in the strangest direc-



tions. Instead of trailer camps, they buy an airplane, for
example.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, the Treasury Branch, 1
would understand, provides the inspections or the au-
ditory service within the department, within the gov-
ernment. How much of a staff do you have to provide
that?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Sherlock.

Mr. Sherlock: Mr. Chairman, perhaps there’s aslight
misunderstanding. The Internal Auditor of the govern-
ment is not a member of the Treasury staff. He's a
member of the Commissioner’s staff.

Wedo carry out audits in the areas of fuel tax, tobacco
tax, mobile tax, this kind of thing. We do this two ways.
We do some of it in-house, right at the desk where we get
information in and we simply audit it through and ac-
cept or reject the information that we get.

This year, we're going to try and do some of it in the
field, as you noticed for the travel. We haven't really
done very much of that except in Whitehorse. We have
gone to the companies in Whitehorse and done in-house
audits or audits on sight with them. We hope to get out a
little bit more this year. We're obliged to by the legisla-
tion, but we just haven’t been able to do it to this point.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson.

Mrs. Watson: How many auditors have you got for
that service, just the one?

Mr. Sherlock: Mr. Chairman, we only have one posi-
tion at the moment.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, possibly Mr. Sherlock
could briefly give us an idea of the functions of the
Internal Auditor.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Sherlock.

Mr. Sherlock: Mr. Chairman, the functions of the In-
ternal Auditor are much more general than the ones
that we just described, the ones within Treasury. Inter-
nal Auditors, primarily look at areas that he’s been
asked to look at, perhaps by the Executive Committee,
by the Commissioner, or by the individual departments.
He looks at regulations and systems to,see that they are
in place and in fact followed. He looks at accounting
areas and sees that practices are correct and followed
from year to year in the same manner. He does the
similar kind of audit as the Auditor General, only he
reports directly in-house, he reports directly to the
Commissioner and Executive Committee.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson.

Mrs. Watson: In a provincial jurisdiction, where are
the internal auditors? Are they part of the personal staff
of the Premier or would they be attached to the De-
partment of Finance?

{
|
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Mr. Chairman: Mr. Sherlock.

Mr. Sherlock: Mr. Chairman, I think in the provincial
jurisdictions there are perhaps two sets of auditors. The
departments have auditors, internal auditors within the
departments, who carry out certain functions for them.
And they also have Provincial Auditors, who report di-
rectly to parliament.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, the Premier doesn't
have a private staff of auditors hen, reporting directly
to him?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Sherlock.

Mr. Sherlock: Mr. Chairman, no, I do not believe that
he does.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I find it very interesting
that our Internal Auditor reports directly to the Com-
missioner, the Chief Administrative Officer.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard.

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, while we're on the
subject, perhaps I could ask Mr. Gillespie if he could
explain how the costing goes when auditors are brought
in from the federal government to audit various
branches of this government, which has occured in the
last year or two. I understand that we are charged for
this service and it is not an inconsiderable charge.
Where would that be shown?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Gillespie?
L

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, that particular audit
was done on a consulting basis, on the request of the then
Commissioner, and was charged to the Commissioner’s
vote. I believe that’s true.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

-Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, this is certainly not a
question for the witnesses, but anyone in the House may
answer it if they wish.

I wonder if the Members of the Executive Committee
received copies of the internal audits that are per-
formed within the Government of the Yukon Territory?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. MGillespie?

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, every audit report that
is done of Departments, for example, a copy of it is
given to the Executive Committee Member, and also to
the Department involved. That is the practice that is
currently followed. And the Treasurer, I should say, too.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?
Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I didn’t say the Execu-

tive Committee Member. I said the Executive Commit-
tee.



Mr. Chairman: Mr. Gillespie?

Mr. Gillespie: These reports, as a matter of fact, have
not been going through the Executive Committee as a
body. They have been going to the Executive Commit-
tee members.  They do not go to the Executive Com-
mittee as such.

Mr. Chairman: So they are not subject to scrutiny
outside of the Department at that level?

Mr. Gillespie: They are subject to the scrutiny,
beyond the Department of the Commissioner or the Ex-
ecutive Committee Member responsible, and of Treas-
ury.

Mr. Chairman: The point still remains.
Mr. Sherlock?

Mr. Sherlock: Mr. Chairman, I might just add that
one of the reasons that the internal auditor does not
report, say, to the Treasurer, is because Treasury is one
of the areas that he audits most of the time.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I understand that, be-
cause that's one of his prime functions, isn’t it, but I
think it’s quite significant that the internal auditors in a
province report back to the body that votes the money

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, may I make a comment
in that regard?

Mr. Gillespie: There is an audit that is performed and
reported back to this body, and that is done by the Au-
ditor General.

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman?

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard?

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: How much does that cost?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?
Mr. Gillespie?

Mr. Gillespie: It's a free service, Mr. Chairman.

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, nothing is free
from the Federal Government.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, it is free, it’s a statut-
ory requirement of the Auditor General under the
Yukon Act.

Mr. Chairman: Establishment 200, are we clear?

Some Members: Clear.

Mr. Chairman: Two oh one, Insurance, $234,800.00.

Mrs. Watson?
Mr. Lengerke?
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Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Chairman, I know that we cleared
200. T asked a question with respect to the Small Busi-
ness Loans. They’ll bring that information?

Mr. Chairman: Yes, you did mention that you
wouldn’t hold it up on that basis.

Mr. Lengerke: Yes, no problem. Thank you.

Mrs. Watson: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I don’t see -- usu-
ally you receive a report of the Liquor control operation
in the budget, and of the Workmen’s Compensation, but
we did receive the annual report of the Workmen’s
Compensation function, it isn’t a department,
Workmen’s Compensation, so the only place within the
estimates where it can be questioned is this section
here, am I correct?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, the Liquor Department
appears here to the extent that included amongst
Treasury revenues is the net profit earned by the Liquor
Department. It appears in no other budget. The expen-
ditures do not appear in any other budget. The only
thing that appears in our Main Estimates is the net
profit.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson.

Mrs. Watson: But we don’t have a statement of the
operation of the Liquor Board, do we?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams.

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, no, there is no expendi-
ture estimate for them, other than the net product of
their estimated expenditures, subtracted from their es-
timated revenues and it appears as a revenue item on
Page 39, but there is no schedule of their expenditures.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, in our other budgets,
they used to include a page or two on the Liquor Control
operations. And also of the Workmen’s Compensation
Board and that is why I would wonder if, because
Workmen's Compensation is not dealt with, again, in
the Estimates, would it be possible if I could have this
section stood over, because there are some questions
that I would like to bring forward on the Workmen’s
Compensation?

Mr. Chairman: Do you request further information to
be brought forward, Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Not necessarily, I just want to review
my questions before I bring them in. There are some
questions on the Workmen’s Board fund.

I have one, I have one question to ask. I would like to
have the opportunity to ask questions and Idon’t want to
by this if I don’t have another chance. But there is one
question. At the Territorial Accounts on Page 33, the
Auditor General’s report to us, Page 33. On the Work-
mens’, the assets and liabilities of the Compensation
fund. I refer to the last paragraph. ‘I further report that



in my opinion, proper books of account have been kept
by the Compensation fund. The financial statements are
in agreement with their risks and the transactions that
have come under my notice have been within it’s statut-
ory powers, except that the manner of calculation of the
maximum wage rates reported in Note two, did not
comply with the provisions of Section 80, of the
Workmen’s Compensation Ordinance.”

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Gillespie.

Mr. Gillespie: We are aware of this difficulty. It's a
difficulty that actually rests in the wording in the Ordi-
nance itself. And we have indicated to the Auditor Gen-
eral that we are going to have to bring in an amendment
to the Workmen’s Compensation Ordinance itself in
order torectify this. And his staff has agreed that this is
the proper course of action to follow and this is some-
thing that we're working on at the present time.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, just specifically, what
is the problem?

Mr. Gillespie: It’s a technical problem that I’'m not
competent to explain here now. It has to do with the
timing of statistics produced by Statistics Canada that
we use and we have to modify the working in the
Workmen’s Compensation Ordinance to accord with the
way Statistics Canada brings out its figures and the
timing with which it brings out its figures.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams.

Mr. Williams: I was just going to elaborate on that
slightly, Mr. Chairman. Under the Workmen’s Com-
pensation Ordinance, their maximum insurance pay-
outs are based, are adjusted annually by the Industrial
Composite of average weekly earnings for the Territory
for the immediate proceeding year. The Ordinance says
that adjustment has to take place in January or as soon
thereafter as possible. But, as Mr. Gillespie indicated,
the, as soon thereafter as possible turns out to be much
later in the year, four to five months later and that’s the
problem referred to by the Auditor General.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall.

Mr. McCall: Yes, Mr. Chairman, in reference to the
item the Honourable Member to my left has just
brought up. I was just looking for Note Two in this par-
ticular report and it’s not even in it.A And I’'m just
wondering where, maybe you could point it out to me
where Note Two is on Page 35. And where is the refer-
ence note two.

Mr. Williams: It’s Page 36. Or 37.

Mr. McCall: Oh, I'm sorry.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson.

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I would like to have the

opportunity to pursue this a little further tomorrow, or
to go back to it again on the Compensation fund.
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Mr. Chairman: Mr. Sherlock.

Mr. Sherlock: Mr. Chairman, may I suggest that
perhpas a place toraise those questions would be in Vote
4 and we could probably ask T-1 to re represented or
their member, because that’s where the expenses for
Workmens Compensation

Mrs. Watson: That’s Territorial Secretary.
Mr. Sherlock: Right.

Mrs. Watson: Fine. Just one more question, Mr.
Chairman, on the thing that I just brought up regarding
the wage, maximum wage rate. Is it going to be neces-
sary to do some adjustments in some of the benefits that
have been paid out or is --

Mr. Gillespie: I don’t believe so, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard?

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, I was just going
to note that if there is to be a change in the Ordinance to
adjust to what the Auditor General has requested,
would those responsible at the same time kindly look to
the retitling of that Ordinance, in order to adjust and be
in line with the more progressive jurisdictions through-
out Canada, which now refer to it as the Worker’s Com-
pensation Ordinance?

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, that is currently
under consideration. Work Persons was another alter-
native.

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: No, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, when can we expect
this amendment?

Mr. Gillespie: The earliest would be the fall session,
Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson:
urgency?

Mr. Chairman, isn’t it rather a bit of

Mr. Gillespie: The Auditor General is aware, Mr.
Chairman, that we are not intending to bring it in before
that time, and his officials have indicated that this
would be okay with them.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?
Mrs. Watson: All that is required is a letter?
Mr. Gillespie: No.

Mr. Sherlock: Mr. Chairman?



Mr. Chairman: Mr. Sherlock?

Mr. Sherlock: May I just add to that, since the Au-
ditor General, the individual who prepared this particu-
lar report is no longer our auditor, as we have a new
Auditor General who now is located in Edmonton, and
as aresult of the changeover, I think they need the time
— they need a time and we need a time to look at this
again, and although we’ve had some preliminary dis-
cussions, we're not prepared yet or not ready to be able
to really act on it.

They are coming down to see us later this month, as a
matter of fact. .

Mr. Chairman: With Committee’s concurrence,
we'll stand Establishment 201.
Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I'm quite willing to
discuss Workmen’s Compensation in Vote 4.

Some Members: Clear.

Mr.Chairman: Very well, is there any further de-
bate on Establishment 2017

Mrs. Watson: Pardon?

Mr. Chairman: Is there any further debate on Es-
tablishment 2017
Mrs. Whyard?

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, there was just
one question I wished to inquire. It had been suggested
to me by a non-government authority on this subject
that we might be well advised to look at paying off the
item under Supplementary Pensions and being done
with it, rather than annually dealing with it, and I don’t
know whether the Department has done any investigat-
ing in that area or not, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Gillespie?

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, this is one of the mat-
ters we are looking into in connection with amendments
to the Workmen’s Compensation Ordinance.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke?

Mr. Lengerke: A question with respect to the gen-
eral insurance, Mr. Chairman.

I understand this isn’t insurance to insure buildings,
am I correct?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Yes, Mr. Chairman, there are three
components to the Insurance Establishment. There’s
general insurance, where we insure ourselves for third
party claims, and then there’s the other two categories
which we've been talking about, Workmen'’s Compensa-
tion, that’s the amount that we pay to the compensation
fund on behalf of our employees who are injured, and
finally, there’s a supplementary pensions which we dis-
cussed in some detail during the supplementals. Those
are payments made to individuals who were injured
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prior to the new Ordinance.
Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke?

Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Chairman, you say we insure
ourselves. What I'm trying to get at is do we place any
insurance with any private companies?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Yes, Mr. Chairman, that amount of
$51,000.00 represents insurance premiums we pay to
private companies.

We insure ourselves against third party risks for loss
of our own property. We are basically self-insured.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke?

Mr. Lengerke: How do we determine where we
place that insurance, that’s what I'm trying to get at?
Do we tender that, are there tenders called to place that
insurance? Is it a competitive situation?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, I stand to be cor-
rected, but we use one particular agent,and we've used
that agent for a number of years, and I believe it was an
arrangement worked out with the insurance agents
themselves, rather than constantly changing agents.

I believe an agreement was reached between the gov-
ernment and the agents some years ago, but that’s —
I'm relying on memory for that.

Mr. Chairman: That soundsrather convenient, Mr.
Williams.

Mr. Lengerke: It’s something that concerns me,
Mr. Chairman. I would hope that, unless it’s a very
costly situation, but I think that when you can allow
some competition, I think maybe we might be getting
better rates, I could be wrong there.

I would like to see us adopt some kind of a policy
whereby that is called on some kind of a tender basis,
every three or five, or whatever years is applicable.

Mr. Chairman: Perhaps the witness could bring
back more information on this, and we can go through --

Mr. Lengerke: Yes, I would like to know when the
policy was put into effect.

Mr. Williams: We will bring that in.
Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger?

Mr. Berger: Thank you. I'm quite concerned with
this self insurance business, I brought it up in the last
session when we talked about insurance.

1 was wondering if the government increased the
self-insurance sufficiently, for people living out in
camps, and I'm thinking particularly in the outlying
areas, can insure their belongings in those camps, and I
was wondering if there has been steps taken to elimi-
nate this.



Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, at the present time,
we do not insure the belongings of our employees living
in camps.

Mr. Berger: Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger?

Mr. Berger: I'm not talking about this. I’m talking
about the government right now at the present time
hasn’t got enough insurance on those camps, that pri-
vate insurance companies would touch people working
for the government in those camps.

People living, and I'm thinking in particularly on the
Dempster Highway now, on a year round basis, the
government plans in other camps out at Eagle River
right now, to those people this is their homes. They have
all their belongings in there, yet they can’t get no insur-
ance on that, because the government has not sufficient
insurance on their buildings.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, by self insurance, I
mean that we do not have insurance policies. If one of
those camps burns down, we have to find the money
within our own resources to replace those camps.

The only kind of insurance that we place with private
companies are — is insurance to protect ourselves from
third party claims.

Mr. Chairman, further with respect to the situation
Mr. Berger mentioned, we have had some preliminary
talks with insurance companies, because the problem
has been brought to our attention as well, and our pre-
liminary information is that we too will not be able to
buy insurance to protect those particular individuals.

Mr. Berger: Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger?

Mr. Berger: Well then1 think it’s high time that the
government insured those people’s belongings, because
if the government expects people to go out in those
camps to work up there, I think they should supply
insurance for those people also.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard?

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, could I ask the
Honourable Member to explain again why it's impossi-
ble to get insurance, why it’s impossible for the people
concerned to have a policy?

I misunderstood what he was saying.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger?

Mr. Berger: Mr. Chairman, it's just like any other
insurance, what we discussed yesterday and in the last
session. The people just apply for insurance, and they
get the explanation, no, we cannot supply insurance in
this particular area, and this is all the explanation that
people can get.

Except in one particular case was because the gov-
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ernment has self-insurance on those places, and there’'s
no sufficient coverage on that, and this is the only exp-
lanation I have on it.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke?

Mr. Lengerke: Just a question of Mr. Berger, so I
can get clarified on that. Are you referring to personal
insurance, like for personal belongings, while they are
staying in the camp, that individual cannot get insur-
ance?

Can I have further clarification? Are you saying that
it should be up to the government to be able to provide
that kind of insurance to them?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger, your nods are not re-
corded.

Mr.Berger: Ihaven’tsaidanything, Mr. Chairman.

Yes, Mr. Chairman, I do believe the government
should be able to insure those peonle. because it's not
through the fault of the people in those camps that those
people can’t get insurance, or their personal belongings
insured, so I think it should be the responsibility of this
government to make sure that those people do get in-
surance on their belongings.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Gillespie?

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, I'm informed, I
wasn’t aware of this beforehand, but I'm informed that
this matter has been brought to our attention, and that
the Territorial Secretary is engaged in an exchange of
correspondence with insurance companies, to deter-
mine the nature of the problem, and what can be done
about it, but that we have no conclusions as yet.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger?

Mr. Berger: Just for the information of this House,
and there seems to be quite a bit of ignorance about it.

There’s people driving the highway right now with
their so-called service trucks and their tool boxes are
worth 5,000, $6,000.00 worth of goods, tools in there,
which they can’t get no insurance on it either, and the
thing isit’s required through the government, that those
people should buy their own tools in order to get a job
there.

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, then the same case
would apply to people in private enterprise as well, in
relation to having, if you're a mechanic and had to have
tools to do your trade, then that individual should,
mustn’t be able to get insurance also. It was my under-
standing that they could get insurance if they wanted it.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall.

Mr. McCall: They have it in private enterprise, Mr.
Chairman.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang
Hon.Mr.Lang: Well, Mr. Chairman, it is my under-

standing that the individual involved is working in pri-
vate enterprise and he has his own tools. He gets the



insurance policy himself, or are you inferring that the
company gets that insurance policy for them?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall?

Mr. McCall: Mr. Chairman, the company provides
that sort of thing.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke?

Mr. Lengerke: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I was just going
to verify that that in fact, that does happen. In the case
of amechanic working in a garage, at least most of them
that I know of, the garage owner provides, has a blanket
coverage, that if in fact something happens, if that
building burns down, that the contents in that building,
which could well be a mechanic's tools, or other belong-
ings in there, are covered. And provide for this. This is
the kind of insurance that most private enterprises
have. Where there’s a need for the individual who is
working there to use specialized equipment, that he
himself might have.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall?

Mr. McCall: I think you’ll find, Mr. Chairman, that
most of private enterprise has sufficient insurance
coverage for all possibilities.. And I think its on the
statutesthat they have to have this when they’re operat-
ing. One of them, Mr. Chairman, is Workmen’s Com-
pensation.

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, we have a list of the
answers in answer to the Member’s concern, but all I
cansay is that we're looking into it and he’s raised some
interesting points and we will have to come up with a
position at a later date once we’ve had the chance to look
at it.

Mr. Chairman: Any further debate on 2017

I won’t clear that yet.

202. Electric Rate Equalization. $600,000.00. And I
refer you to Appendix Page 11.

Mr. Lengerke?

Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Chairman, I believe we had a
pretty in-depth discussion about this when we were de-
aling with the supps and, again, it’s — all I want to say at
this time is, and I'm sure that most Members agree,
that some place along the line we are going to have to
make some sort of a commitment as to how we're going
to carry on with this kind of equalization rate, because,
as weknow, it’s depleting very rapidly and are we going
to continue to subsidize it in what way, Idon’t know, but
I think some place along the line we should make some
commitment for the future.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming?

Mr. Fleming: Well, Mr. Chairman, it’s not quite
clear to me. The Minister of Local Government said the
other morning in the House that this fund would be
deleted, however, L hear from the witnesses, too, at the
same time that they don’t seem to have any knowledge
back about two or three years as to how much money we
are going to get from the government through the
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equalization program, from back income tax from
Yukon Electric. I might ask just how much income tax
is to be returned to us for '75 and ’76?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, the way the cash in-
flow works is as follows: In February of every year, for
instance in February 1977 a couple of weeks ago, we
received from the Federal Government an estimate of
how much they think Yukon Electric is going to have to
pay them for income taxes for the year 1976. And they
advance that money to us two months later, in February
of 1977.

However, it won’t be until 1978 or '79 that the Federal
Government tells us precisely how much money Yukon
Electric owes them for 1976, so therefore we do get our
money on an advanced basis and then, two years later,
we make an adjustment, and it’s been our most recent
experience that the amount of money which they have
been advancing us is in excess of what they should have
actually given us, so we are in fact having to repay them
amounts which they have over-advanced us.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming?

Mr. Fleming: Yes, Mr. Chairman. Very well, but I
have heard from different sources possibly that there is
a difference there. I think possibly there may be, but I
would think that maybe the Government might check
with Yukon Electric and Yukon Electric may be able to
tell them how much money they are going to or have
given the Federal Government in the past two years.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, that’s a good sugges-
tion, and of course there’s no compulsion on Yukon
Electric’s part to reveal what’s included on their corpo-
rate tax returns. As a general course, we’'re not entitled
to that information, but if they would voluntarily make
it available to us then we wouldn’t have to guess what
the overpayment is, we could calculate it more pre-
cisely.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, a question for Mem-
bers, any one of the Executive Committee. Have they
had any indication from the Minister, or have they in-
quired of the Minister, whether he would be prepared to
consider an equalization fund for the Yukon Territory,
Electrical Equalization Fund for the Yukon Territory,
that we could fall back upon after this fund is depleted?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Gillespie?

Mr. Gillespie: Wehaveindicated tothe Department
and to the Minister that we are undertaking a study at
the moment into the equalization plan, and would be
forwarding to the Minister our recommendations, so to
that extent, yes, we have indicated and asked him to
take into account our recommendations, which are not
yet ready.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke?



Mr. Lengerke: A little later, Mr. Chairman, excuse
me.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger?

Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Chairman. On this same par-
ticular line, in your recommendations, will you also
recommend to increase the level of subsidization to a
more realistic level of 500 kilowatts?

Mr. Gillespie: This is an aspect of our study that
we're looking into, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming?

Mr. Fleming: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I wonder if the
witness could inform me if that estimate they are giving
us is under what they're going to get in income tax from
Yukon Electric, is that going to be given to us as a loan
and we will owe back two or three years monies that is
necessary?

Will we have to, in other words, pay that back, or is it
going to be just given to us? What’s the plan?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I believe Mr.
Fleming is relating to the advance we received from the
income tax people.

Yes, we do have torepay any overpayment and if, for
instance, there happened to be an underpayment then
the Federal Government would give us that.

I do have some place, in fact I believe I distributed it,
copies of the adjustments which have been made in
recent years, for instance for 1973, I believe, it turned
out that the Federal Government had underadvanced
us by some $14,000.00, so in 1975 or '76 they gave us back
that $14,000.00. In 1974 they had overadvanced us by
some $70,000.00, so therefore, when we received our
money two weeks ago for 1976, from that they sub-
igggted the $70,000.00 that they had overadvanced us in

So our inflow is eventually adjusted to equal the ac-
tual amount that we should receive, but there is a timing
problem on it.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Another question for the Executive
Committee Member. Has the Minister given any indica-
tion of whether he is prepared to consider the proposal
of Y.T.G.’s when it comes forward, and has he given any
favourable answer?

He did make a public statement that he was prepared
to look at assisting Y.T.G. in an equalization scheme.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Gillespie.

Mr. Gillespie: We’ve not had any precise, we've had
nothing directly from the Minister on this, although we
have assurance from his officials that our recommen-
daticns will be brought to his attention. But we have not
received instructions from the Minister.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson.
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Mrs. Watson: Who is doing this study?

Mr. Gillespie: A consultant by the name of Mr.
Kidd, in Vancouver, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson?

Mrs. Watson: Isthisthe same person whois doing —
is it part of the study that is being done on franchises?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon.

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Just before I said to the House
that Mr. Kidd was definitely doing the study on the
equalization, and I wasn’t positive who was doing it, I
thought it was perhaps Mr. Kidd on franchises; also,
Price, Waterhouse is doing the study on franchises, Mr.
Kidd on equalization.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson.

Mrs. Watson: How much is the study costing and
where is it in our budget?

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Williams.

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, it’s presumed, I be-
lieve, that that study will be funded under the 1976-77
funds and it’s coming out of the $45,000.00 base in that
Establishment. You might recall a little while earlier
we said that it was a $45,000.00 uncommitted base, and
that’s an example of one of the sort of things that’s being
charged against that base.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke.

Mr. Lengerke: The costof the study, Mr. Chairman,
again?

Mr. Gillespie: Mr. Chairman, we haven’t a precise
figure. It depends upon the amount of time that he will
take to complete the study, but our estimate at this point
in time is roughly $2,000.00.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke.

Mr. Lengerke: Thank you. The other point that I
wanted to make, Mr. Chairman, is that I believe in the
Task Force Report, and the Honourable Member from
Kluane was asking how the Minister is going to react
and what’s going to happen with this, with respect to this
subsidy or equalization fund.

I think in the report, if I am correct, there is a recom-
mendation that recommends against no further sub-
sidy. And what I'd like to say, you know, we have a
resolution that we will be debating in Committee of the
Whole, and I'm sure, the Honourable Member from
Kluane, I think, was one of the movers to put it in Com-
mittee of the Whole, and I would hope that at that time
that we can have quite a discussion on this and maybe
get some direction to the Minister and get some answers
because it’s a very, very important question. We just
have to have answers to them and certainly his action
has to be, I hope, beneficial to us.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon.



Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, I honestly ex-
pect that the Chairman of the NCPC and the Minister of
Indian Affairs and Northern Development both ex-
pected the Task Force Report to come out saying that
they thought there should be probably a further equali-
zation subsidy because of the high cost of electrical
energy in Yukon and I think that they were both kind of
cut off at the pass because the Task Force specifically
said that there should be no further subsidizes for north-
ern and Yukon users.

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson.

Mrs. Watson: No, it didn’t cut it off completely. It’s
suggested that there may be certain groups of people
who may require an equalization scheme and some as-
sistance. Read your recommendations.

Mr. Chairman: Establishment 202. Clear?
Some Members: Clear.
Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall.

Mr. McCall: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I would move that
Mr. Speaker resume the Chair.

Mr. Fleming: I second that. It has been moved by
Mr. McCall, seconded by Mr. Fleming, that Mr.
Speaker do now resume the Chair.

Are you ready for the question?

Some Members: Question.

Mr. Chairman: Are you agreed?

Some Members: Agreed.

Mr. Chairman: I declare the Motion as carried.
(Motion carried)

Mr. Chairman: The witnesses are excused. Thank
you.

(Mr. Speaker resumes Chair)

Mr. Speaker: 1 will now call the House to Order.
May we have areport from the Chairman of Commit-
tees?

Mr. Hibberd: Mr. Speaker, the Committee of the
Whole considered Bill Number 1, Second Appropriation
Ordinance, 1976-77, and directed me to report the same
without amendment.

The Committee have also considered Bill Number 2, A
First Appropriation Ordinance, 1977-78, and directed
me to report progress on same.

Mr. Speaker, the Committee have also adopted a re-
solution and directed me to report the same as follows:

RESOLVED that a separate vote be established for
the Yukon Legislative Assembly, and that the said vote
encompass the following:

Statutory emoluments, payable to Members of the
Legislature;

Canadian Parliamentary Association activities;
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Operation of Committees of the Assembly;

Members’ services similar to those provided to Mem-
bers of Legislatures throughout the Commonwealth and
administrative support services to the Assembly.

The Committee have directed me to ask leave to sit
again.

Mr. Speaker: You have heard the Report of the
Chairman of Committees. Are you agreed?

Some Members: Agreed.

Mr. Speaker: Leave is granted.

And when shall Bill Number 1 be read a third time?

The Honourable Member from Whitehorse North
Centre?

Bill Number 1 — Third Reading

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Speaker, I move, sec-
onded by the Honourable Member from Whitehorse
West, that Bill Number 1 be now read a third time.

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable
Member from Whitehorse North Centre, seconded by
the Honourable Member from Whitehorse West, that
Bill Number 1 be now read a third time.

Are you prepared for the question?

Oh, the Honourable Member from Kluane?

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Speaker, I again have to rise on
this Bill. I think a great mistake is being made. A politi-
cal decision is being made to expend money —
$104,000.00. You're going underneath the umbrella of
vote wording, you're going completely contrary to the
legislation that is now on the books, and I think thatit’s a
black day in this Legislative Assembly, and our politi-
cally elected people will not be prepared to expend
grant money, which is based on a formula which is
outlined in legislation, and I’m not prepared to take the
time to have the necessary legislative authority pre-
pared so that it can be done the proper way.

It’s well and good to say, to get legal advice and say
you can do it in vote wording. As I said before, I was
aware of it, but I've always thought, particularly with
this type of thing, that vote wording is almost an under-
handed way of doing it, and I think that political people,
when they’re not following the rules of the game, should
be very, very, very careful and take the time to enact
the proper legislation to give you the authority to do
certain things.

Mr. Speaker, for that reason I will be voting against the
Bill and probably asking for division.

Mr. Speaker: Is there any further debate?
The Honourable Member from Whitehorse South
Centre?

Mr. Hibberd: Mr. Speaker, [ would like to point out to
the Member from Kluane that this is precisely what
politicians of the Territory have been doing, ever since
they have been an elected body, it has been pointed out
to us.

It has also been pointed out that this method is the
method that is carried on through every other jurisdic-
tion in Canada, and therefore, I do consider it a politi-



cally proper move that we make at this time.

Mr. Speaker: Any further debate?
The Honourable Member from Whitehorse North
Centre?

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, if there’s any-
body who's getting in a problem with his colleagues and
Members in this House for using ministerial discretion,
it’s this Honourable Member, because I come from the
school where you get a problem, and you get it on your
plate and you get it solved as quickly as possible.

So, I'm doubly, I’'m triply, I'm quintuply careful, when
it comes to legislation of this sort, Mr. Speaker, thatI've
made sure, because of the jams I've got myself in be-
fore, and probably will in the future, of being careful of
the authority from which the Bill eminates.

I went to the former Treasurer, the former Commis-
sioner, the Legal Advisor and the present Treasurer, to
find out the method by which this Bill could be intro-
duced to the House, and the best method of getting it
passed.

There was three methods: There was bringing an
amendment to a Bill; there was bringing in a new Ordi-
nance, or a Vote wording in supplementaries, for many
reasons, one of the main ones being that we wanted to
get the supplementaries in as quickly as possible, and
the one time windfall grant to live up to a commitment
that a former Commissioner made, was the method that
we chose at the time.

It’s perfectly valid, it’s perfectly legal, perfectly
within the competence and authority of this House, and
I'm sure, Mr. Speaker, that when the Auditor General
once again writes his financial report on financial mat-
ters of the Yukon, that he will not be singling out this one
time windfall grant for any type of statement that is not
within the authority of this House, and within the Gov-
ernemnt of the Yukon, because it is, and Mr. Speaker,
I'm positive that we are acting legally, authoritatively
and Parliamentarily in this matter, and I think that we
should, at this time, call third reading to Bill Number 1.

Mr. Speaker: Is there any further debate?
Are you prepared for the question?

Some Members: Question.
Mrs. Watson: Division.

Mr. Speaker: Division has been called.
Madam Clerk, would you poll the House?

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Mr. McKinnon?
Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Yea.

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Mrs. Whyard?
Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Yea. ’

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Mr. Lang?
Hon. Mr. Lang: Yea.

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Member, Mr. McIn-
tyre?
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Mr. Mclntyre: Yea.

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Member, Mr.
Berger?

Mr. Berger: Yea.

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Member, Mr. Hib-
berd?

Mr. Hibberd: Yea.

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Member, Mr. Flem-
ing?
Mr. Fleming: Yea.

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Member, Ms. Mil-
lard?

Ms. Millard: Yea.

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Member, Mr.
McCall?

Mr. McCall: Yea.

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Member, Mrs. Wat-
son?

Mrs. Watson: Nay.

Madam Clerk: The Honourable Member, Mr.
Lengerke?

Mr. Lengerke: Yea.

Madam Clerk: Mr. Speaker, the results of the divi-
sion are 10 yea, one nay.

Mr. Speaker: I will declare that the Motion is car-
ried.

( Motion carried)

Mr. Speaker: Are you prepared to adopt the title to
the Bill?

The Honourable Member from Whitehorse North
Centre?

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Yes, Mr. Speaker, I move, sec-
onded by the Honourable Member from Whitehorse
West, that Bill Number 1 be now -- do now pass and that
the title be as on the Order Paper.

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable
Member from Whitehorse North Centre, seconded by
the Honourable Member from Whitehorse West, that
Bill Number 1 do now pass, and that the title be as on the
Order Paper.

Are you prepared for the question?

Some Members: Question.

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed?



Some Members: Agreed.

Mr. Speaker: 1 shall declare that the Motion is car-
ried, and that Bill Number 1 has passed this House.

(Motion carried)

Mr. Speaker: May I have your further pleasure at
this time?

The Honourable Member from Whitehorse River-
dale?

Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Speaker, I move that we do now
call it 5:00 o’clock.

Ms. Millard: I second that, Mr. Speaker.

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Member from
Whitehorse Riverdale, seconded by the Honourable
Member from Ogilvie, that we do now call it 5:00
o’clock. §

Are you prepared for the question?

Some Members: Question.

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed?

Some Members: Agreed.

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare the Motion is carried.
(Motion carried)

Mr. Speaker: This house stands adjourned until 10:00
a.m. tomorrow morning.

{ ADJOURNED)
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